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OUR VISION

To be Africa’s leading Real Estate Company that creates long term value for all stakeholders

OUR MISSION

To deliver world class services and developments by leveraging global best practices, strategic 
partnerships, excellence and innovation

ABOUT AFRILAND PLC
 
Afriland Properties Plc, formerly known as UBA Properties Limited was incorporated   as a  private  
limited  liability  Company  on  14  March  2007  and  is headquartered in Lagos, Nigeria with 
other satellite locations in Abuja, Port-Harcourt, Benin and Ibadan.
  
It is a Nigerian based property management, investment and development company offering 
end-to-end services along the real estate value chain, from management to joint venture 
investments. With one of the largest land banks in Nigeria, Afriland is pioneering the opportunities 
presented by an institutional approach to real estate, serving niche markets throughout Africa. 

Afriland Properties Plc was borne out of United Bank of Africa Plc’s (“UBA”) decision to evolve 
into a commercial bank, ring fenced from all other non-commercial banking activities. As a 
result of the restructuring, Afriland Properties Plc owns all the excess real estate assets of the 
bank with a view to being listed on the NSE in the near future. The total assets transferred to 
AFRILAND Properties Plc as at the effective date of January 3, 2013 was N2.496 billion, and this 
amount now forms part of the equity capital of the company.

Afriland Properties Plc’s aim is to provide adequate infrastructural development as well as to 
fully optimize and commercialize its existing real estate portfolio. Afriland Properties Plc targets 
two (2) key customer segments: Residential and Commercial investors”.

OUR CORE VALUES 

Hardwork
���3DVVLRQDWH�DERXW�H[WUDRUGLQDU\�UHVXOWV
���'LVFLSOLQH
���&RPPLWPHQW�WR�H[FHOOHQFH

Emotional Intelligence
���6HOI�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�HPRWLRQDO�VHOI�FRQWURO
���5HVSHFW�IRU�RWKHUV

Integrity
���'HOLYHULQJ�RQ�\RXU�SURPLVH
���([FHHGLQJ�H[SHFWDWLRQV
���/LYLQJ�WKH�EUDQG

Resilience
���&DQ�GR�6SLULW
���%UHDNWKURXJK�WKLQNLQJ
���)ROORZLQJ�WKURXJK�WR�HQVXUH�UHVXOWV

Synergy
���&ROODERUDWLQJ�ZLWK�FROOHDJXHV
���/HYHUDJLQJ�JURXS�UHODWLRQVKLSV�

COMPANY OVERVIEW
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RESULTS AT A GLANCE

31 December
                                                               2013                         2012
                                                     N’000            N’000
  
Operating income                        595,445                    22,945
                                                        ======           =====
  

2SHUDWLQJ�SURÀW� � ��������������� � ���������������������� ���������������
                                                         ======           =====

3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � ���� � � ���������������������� ����������������
                                                         ======           =====
   

Earnings per share                                                N0.28            N0.03
                                                         ======                      =====

31 December
                                    2013                   2012              1 Jan. 2012
                                           N’000                     N’000            N’000

Total assets                       4,234,168                   818,019         562,345
                                       ======                  ======          =====

Total equity                      2,827,325              549,386        516,127
                                         ======                  ======          =====
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Erelu Angela Adebayo
Chairman

Erelu Angela Adebayo is the Chairman of Afriland Properties Plc. Born in the United 
Kingdom, she holds a BSc with honours in Social Science and an MBA, as well as an MPhil 
(Cantab) in Land Economy from the University of Cambridge.

She has cut her niche in the banking and real estate sectors of the economy. She 
managed a leading real estate company, Quintecca, from 1990 and sits on the board 
of so many companies amongst which include DN Meyer Plc and Dangote Foundation.

(UHOX�ZDV�WKH�ÀUVW�ODG\�RI�(NLWL�6WDWH�EHWZHHQ������������6KH�KROGV�WUDGLWLRQDO�WLWOHV�RI�$DUH�
Erelu of Ado Ekiti and Erelu of Iyin Ekiti in Ekiti State.

Uzoamaka Oshogwe
&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU

8]R�2VKRJZH�LV�WKH�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU�RI�$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF�

She holds a BSc in Chemistry (1989) from Ambrose Alli University, Edo State and an MSc 
Information Systems Design (1996) from the University of Westminster, London. She has 
over 20 years’ working experience, mainly in Information Technology and Banking.

Prior to joining Afriland Properties Plc, she worked for over a decade as an IT Specialist at 
$FFHQWXUH�8.�EDVHG�DW�VHYHUDO�FOLHQWV·�VLWHV��LQFOXGLQJ�-RQHV�/D6DOOH�(XURSH��D�ÀQDQFLDO�
DQG� SURIHVVLRQDO� VHUYLFHV� ÀUP� VSHFLDOL]LQJ� LQ� UHDO� HVWDWH� VHUYLFHV� DQG� LQYHVWPHQW�
management

Olayinka Ogunsulire
Non-Executive Director

Yinka Ogunsulire is one of the leading property development professionals in Nigeria,  
DQG�ZDV�WKH�SDVW�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU�RI�+HLUV�5HDO�(VWDWH�

Prior to that, she was the Managing Director of ARM Properties Plc, the real estate 
subsidiary of Asset and Resource Management Limited. 

She holds an M. Phil in Land Management from the University of Reading, England. She 
has been a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors since 1992
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Samuel Nwanze   
Non-Executive Director

6DP�1ZDQ]H� LV�&KLHI� ,QYHVWPHQW�2IÀFHU�DW�+HLUV�+ROGLQJV��ZKHUH�KH� LV� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU�
WKH� DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ� DQG� PDQDJHPHQW� RI� WKH� JURXS·V� RYHUDOO� ÀQDQFLDO� DFWLYLWLHV� DQG�
investment programmes. 

+H�KDV�D�0DVWHUV�LQ�)LQDQFH�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�IURP�&UDQÀHOG�6FKRRO�RI�0DQDJHPHQW�
(UK). Prior to joining Heirs Holdings, Sam worked in banking institutions in various roles that 
VDZ�KLP�RYHUVHH�VWUDWHJ\��ÀQDQFLDO�FRQWURO��SHUIRUPDQFH�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�WUHDVXU\��DV�
well as play a key role in the STB-UBA merger.

Ike Ogbue
Non-Executive Director

Ike Ogbue, is a British-trained Architect, Designer and Project Manager with more than 
25 years of practice in the profession.

In the UK, he worked for Kohn Pedersen Fox, Candy & Candy, Building Design Partnership, 
and Terry Farrell on projects in Dubai, Monaco and in cities across the UK and Europe, 
LQFOXGLQJ�KLJK�HQG� UHVLGHQWLDO� SURMHFWV��PL[HG�XVH�GHYHORSPHQWV�� RIÀFHV�� UHWDLO�PDOOV��
and an 850-bed acute care facility.

In Nigeria, he has established an architectural and project-management practice. 
His practice has produced designs and executed projects in London, and across West 
Africa, from a boutique hotel in Liberia through a retail mall in Ghana, right up to a 
hospital, and a medical clinic here in Nigeria. He has also managed the design and 
construction of several corporate headquarters and hotels.
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Dennis Stokell
Director, Projects & Facilities Management

Dennis is the Director, Projects & Facilities Management. He is a trained Electrical 
Engineer with over thirty years experience.  Dennis’ experiences range from mechanical/
electrical and civil engineering in different facets of industrial, commercial, residential 
DQG� UHWDLO�FRPSOH[HV�HVWDWHV�DQG�3URMHFW�0DQDJHG� UHIXUELVKPHQW�� UHÀW�	� LQVWDOODWLRQ�
maintenance contracts.
 
Dennis started his working experience in South Africa. Prior to joining  Afriland Properties, 
Dennis has worked in several other capacities in Nigeria and South Africa including 
Victoria Garden City (VGC) in Lagos where he served as the facilities manager.

Oluwasegun Adesanya
&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IÀFHU

2OXZDVHJXQ�$GHVDQ\D�LV�WKH�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IÀFHU�DW�$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF��+H�LV�D�
.30*�WUDLQHG�FKDUWHUHG�DFFRXQWDQW�DQG�ÀQDQFH�SURIHVVLRQDO��3ULRU�WR�MRLQLQJ�$IULODQG�
Properties, he worked at Asset & Resource Management Company Limited (ARM) where 
he was Vice President, Financial Reporting, with responsibility for managing the process 
IRU�ÀQDQFLDO�IRUHFDVWLQJ��EXGJHWV��FRQVROLGDWLRQ�DQG�UHSRUWLQJ�

At KPMG Professional Services, he was a team member of the Audit and Business 
Advisory Division where he led various assurance engagements within the Nigerian 
Financial Services Industry. Oluwasegun Adesanya holds a B.Sc. in Finance from the 
University of Lagos in 2001.

Henry Omoike
Head, Business Development

Henry Omoike is the Head of Business Development. He has over 20 years working 
experience of which 14 years is in the Banking and Financial Industry, having joined UBA 
Plc in 1997. Prior to joining UBA, Henry worked in the Construction and Real Estate Sector 
in Nigeria, and is a professional member of the Nigerian Institute of Quantity Surveyors 
and Quantity Surveyors registration Board of Nigeria.

He holds a HND Quantity Surveying from Auchi Polytechnic (1998); an MBA in Financial 
Management from Lagos State University (1998) and an MSc Economics from Ambrose 
Alli University, Edo State (2004).

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
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Bolanle Ibitola
Head, Human Resources

Bolanle is a HR Practitioner with core competences in Employee Relations, Training & 
Development, Recruitment & Selection, Performance Management, Compensation & 
%HQHÀWV��6WUDWHJ\�	�6\VWHPV��6KH�LV�DOVR�DQ�DFFUHGLWHG�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�&,3'��8.�

She possesses a Masters degree in Human Resources Management from the Middlesex 
University Business School and a degree in English Language & Literature from the 
University of Lagos.

Obong Idiong
Company Secretary

Obong Idiong is the Company Secretary/Legal Adviser. A legal practitioner with over 
12 years of experience in the Banking and Financial Industry and commercial practice, 
Obong is a member of the Nigerian Bar Association as well as the Society of Corporate 
Governance of Nigeria. 

He holds an LL.M degree in International Finance and Business Law from the University of 
Liverpool, an MBA from the Lagos State University, an LL.B from the University of Calabar, 
and a Bachelor of Law degree from the Nigerian Law School, Lagos. 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Distinguished Shareholders, 

2Q�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF�� LW� LV�P\�SOHDVXUH�WR�ZHOFRPH�\RX�WR�WKH�ÀUVW�
Annual General Meeting of Afriland Properties Plc and to present to you the annual reports and 
WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������7KH�UHVXOWV�ZH�
DUH�FRQVLGHULQJ�WRGD\�DUH�IRU�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV�DV�D�IXOO�ÁHGJHG�HQWLW\�VHTXHO� WR�WKH�VFKHPH�RI�
arrangement and spin off exercise in January 2013.

I wish to thank you for your continued support and cooperation with the Board and Management 
RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� GXULQJ� WKH� ÀQDQFLDO� \HDU�� 7KH� VXSSRUW� KDV� JUHDWO\� HQFRXUDJHG� WKH� %RDUG�
and Management to continue to make giant strides in operational excellence and business 
performance despite the challenging economic climate.

The Local Economy
Nigeria has rebased its GDP calculation thus placing it as the largest economy in Africa. Data 
from the National Bureau of Statistics (NBS) indicate that real GDP grew 6.87% in 2013, compared 
to 6.58% in 2012. A review of the country’s performance reveals that the oil sector continued 
on its free fall path in terms of contribution to the GDP while the non-oil sector (buoyed by 
the Agricultural sector) continues to support the economy. Without a doubt, the Government’s 
effort to diversify the economy, supported by agro-friendly policy amendments and structural 
changes yielded some results in 2013. In terms of contribution to GDP, the agricultural sector was 
the dominant contributor accounting for 21.97% followed by wholesale & retail trade (20.1%), 
crude petroleum and natural gas (14.4%) and telecommunication and post (8.68%).

1LJHULD�DFKLHYHG�DQG�VXVWDLQHG�VLQJOH�GLJLW�LQÁDWLRQ�UDWH�LQ�������ZLWK�WKH�WURXJK�EHHQ�UHFRUGHG�
in October at 7.80%. This downtrend was a departure from the status quo experienced since 
2007. The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) continued with its tight monetary policy stance in the 
year, maintaining its benchmark rate at 12% throughout the year. The tight monetary stance 
and a relatively stable exchange rate regime accounted for moderation in price levels in the 
HFRQRP\�DV�WKH�FRXQWU\�UHFRUGHG�VLQJOH�GLJLW�LQÁDWLRQ�UDWH�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�\HDU��

The capital market continued its rally as the All-Share Index (ASI) increased by 47.2 per cent 
from 28,078.81 on December 31, 2012 to 41,329.19 on December 31, 2013. Market Capitalization 
increased by 47.4 per cent from N8.97 trillion to N13.23 trillion during the same period. Improved 
HDUQLQJV�DQG� LQYHVWRU�FRQÀGHQFH� LQ�PDFURHFRQRPLF�PDQDJHPHQW�FRQWULEXWHG�WR�WKH�ULVH� LQ�
stock prices.

The real estate sector has followed an upward trajectory since 2002; the sector’s performance 
was better in 2013, contributing 8.01% to the GDP. The sector is expected to continue this growth 
in 2014 now that the Primary Mortgage Institutions (PMIs) re-capitalization has been concluded 
FRXSOHG�ZLWK�WKH�WDNH�RII�RI�WKH�1LJHULD�0RUWJDJH�5HÀQDQFH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��105&��ZLWK�DQ�LQLWLDO�
$300 million grant from the World Bank. This underscores the determination of the President 
*RRGOXFN�-RQDWKDQ·V�DJHQGD�WR�SUDFWLFDOO\� WUDQVIRUP�WKH�VHFWRU� IRU� WKH�EHQHÀW�RI�1LJHULDQV��
One of the objectives of the NMRC is to raise the number of completed mortgages from the 
current 20,000 housing units to 200,000 units in three years. These will see other sectors such as 
development; manufacturing, design, services and construction do more businesses in the years 
ahead, thereby increasing the industry’s contribution to the nation’s economy.

Global Environment
)RU� WKH� ÀUVW� WLPH�� ����� VDZ�ZKDW� VHHPV� WR� EH� WKH� EHJLQQLQJ� RI� HFRQRPLF� WXUQ�DURXQG� DQG�
VXVWDLQDEOH�UHFRYHU\�IRU�PRVW�GHYHORSHG�HFRQRPLHV�DIIHFWHG�E\�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�FULVLV�RI�������DOEHLW�
at a cautious pace; growth is projected to accelerate in 2014. The US is recording increasing 
growth while the Eurozone is showing economic improvement although unemployment in the 
Euro area remains high. 

Indeed, the world economy experienced delicate and timid recovery in 2013 but not without 
a few stutters. For example, the initial global growth forecast of 3.50% was eventually reviewed 
downwards to 3.20% by mid-year, then further down to 2.90% by Q4 2013. It is believed that 
economic activities were hampered by anticipated tapering of the US quantitative easing; 
which never happened in the year. Overall, according to the World Bank’s global Economic 
Prospects report, the developed economies almost matched the predicted growth of 1.25%, 
with a showing of 1.20%, while Sub-Saharan Africa achieved 5.0% (projection: 5.20%). The weaker 
WKDQ�IRUHFDVW�JURZWK�UDWH�IRU������IRU�WKH�6XE�6DKDUDQ�$IULFD�UHÁHFWHG�ERWK�D�PRUH�DGYHUVH�
H[WHUQDO�HQYLURQPHQW³FKDUDFWHUL]HG�E\�ULVLQJ�ÀQDQFLQJ�FRVWV��OHVV�G\QDPLF�HPHUJLQJ�PDUNHWV��

STATEMENTS AND OPERATIONS
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and less favourable commodity prices—and diverse domestic factors, including slower investment and weakening consumer 
FRQÀGHQFH� LQ�VRPH�FDVHV��DQG�DGYHUVH�VXSSO\�GHYHORSPHQWV� LQ�RWKHUV��7KHVH�IDFWRUV�QRWZLWKVWDQGLQJ��WKH�FRQWLQHQW� LV� IRUHFDVW�
to experience growth rates of 6% and above in 2014, as possible temporary declines in international commodity prices are not 
expected to affect growth in the continent.

Activities during the year
I am pleased to inform you that the merger between Afriland Properties Plc and Heirs Real Estate Limited, where our Company was 
the acquiring company, has been approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The business combination, amongst 
RWKHUV�� DIIRUGV�$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV� 3OF� WR� ORFN� LQWR�FDSWLYH�DQG�H[WHUQDO�GHDO� ÁRZ�DULVLQJ� IURP�QHWZRUN�DQG� WUDFN� UHFRUG�RI� WKH�
acquired company, For example, the redevelopment of the Falomo Shopping Mall is one of such deals arising from the business 
combination.  It is expected that the merger will also provide additional revenue streams with no duplication of functions and higher 
RSHUDWLQJ�HIÀFLHQF\��

Furthermore, in compliance with the directive of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (FRCN) requesting all public interest 
HQWLWLHV�WR�UHSRUW�WKHLU�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�XVLQJ�WKH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUG��,)56���,�DP�JODG�WR�GHFODUH�WKDW�ZH�
KDYH�IXOÀOOHG�RXU�REOLJDWLRQ�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�GLUHFWLYH�

Financial Performance and dividend
7KH�&RPSDQ\�DFKLHYHG�D�SURÀW�EHIRUH�WD[��3%7��RI�1�������PLOOLRQ�IRU�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������7KLV�UHSUHVHQWV�
DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI��������IURP�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�1������PLOOLRQ�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������3URÀW�DIWHU�WD[��3$7��DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�
the Company was N281.94 million, which is 747% above the position of N33.26 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
 
The massive upturn in performance compared with the preceding year is mainly attributable to the increased level of activities 
arising from the spin off from UBA Plc.

In light of this performance, the Board of Directors is proposing the sum of N100 million as dividend payment for the year ended 
31 December 2013; this translates to 10 kobo per ordinary share. We hereby request for your consideration and approval. We will 
FRQWLQXH�WR�VWULNH�D�JRRG�EDODQFH�EHWZHHQ�RXU�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�UHZDUGLQJ�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�WKH�QHHG�WR�UHWDLQ�HDUQLQJV�WR�ÀQDQFH�
future reinvestments in to our operations.

Outlook for 2014
The outlook for the Nigerian Economy remains positive with an expected growth rate 7.27% in the year. It is expected that the non-oil 
VHFWRU�JURZWK�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�GULYH�WKH�HFRQRP\�HYHQ�DV�RLO�VHFWRU�JURZWK�FRQWLQXHV�WR�ZDQH��$�ÀVFDO�VWUDLW�MDFNHW�LV�SURSRVHG�LQ�
2014 budget, however, deviations are expected in the light of electioneering and populism.

It is expected that the investment by the new power sector players will be a notable driver in the real estate sector as they invest 
in improved facilities. There are also opportunities for successful foreign franchises in the food sector with demands for real estate 
IDFLOLWLHV��)XUWKHUPRUH��LQFUHDVHG�XUEDQL]DWLRQ��GHPDQG�IRU�KRXVLQJ��UHWDLO�DQG�RIÀFH�VSDFHV�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�GULYH�JURZWK�DQG�PDNH�
WKH�VHFWRU�ÁRXULVK�HYHQ�PRUH�

The company has put strategy in place to provide clear direction for the deployment of its resources; both human and capital. 
The Company’s vision is to create long-term and sustainable value for our stakeholders in our chosen markets. In order to realise 
this long-term objectives, the Company is making every effort to identify and take advantage of every investment opportunity that 
will complement its long-term strategic objectives. We will continue to look out for these investment opportunities that will help in 
creating value for our stakeholders.

Conclusion
Ladies and Gentlemen, on behalf of the Board, I use this opportunity to appreciate the Management team led by Mrs. Uzoamaka 
Oshogwe and all our committed employees, for their hard work and dedication in ensuring that our great Company delivers 
commendable results in spite of the challenging business climate and stiff competition.

I also commend my fellow colleagues on the Board for the dedication demonstrated in the performance of their supervisory 
responsibilities

Finally, let me, on behalf of the Board of Directors, thank you, our distinguished shareholders, for the dedication and support given to 
WKH�%RDUG�DQG�0DQDJHPHQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�WKLV�SDVW�\HDU��:H�ORRN�IRUZDUG�WR������ZLWK�D�KLJK�GHJUHH�RI�FRQÀGHQFH��LQ�ERWK�
our Company and the Nigerian economy.  

Erelu Angela Adebayo

Chairman, Board of Directors

STATEMENTS AND OPERATIONS
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CEO’S REPORT

Distinguished Shareholders,

,�ZHOFRPH�\RX�WR�WKH�ÀUVW�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ�RI�$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF�VLQFH�RXU�RIÀFLDO�
spin-off. This provides a forum to appraise our performances in 2013 and see what we were 
able to achieve. I wish to thank the shareholders for their support; a resourceful board and also 
appreciate the determination of our staff to serve our clients diligently; these, combined has 
resulted in the performance we are celebrating today. As mentioned by our Chairman, I also 
want to use this opportunity to congratulate all of us on the approval of the HRE-Afriland merger. 
I want to say a big thank you for your participation at the Court Ordered Meeting (COM) in 
'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� IRU� WKH�PHUJHU�� WKLV�ZDV�$IULODQG·V� ÀUVW�RXWLQJ�ZLWK� \RX��RXU� 6KDUHKROGHUV��
which was a success.

$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF�VLQFH�LWV�RIÀFLDO�VSLQ�RII�ZRUNHG�WRZDUGV�DFKLHYLQJ�LWV�EXVLQHVV�JRDOV�DQG�
objectives, mainly in areas such as:

��3URMHFW�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�VXSHUYLVLRQ�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�
��)DFLOLWLHV�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�YDULRXV�SURSHUWLHV�IRU�FOLHQWV�
��5HDO�HVWDWH�GHYHORSPHQW�E\�RSWLPL]LQJ�RXU�SURSHUWLHV�WKURXJK�DWWUDFWLQJ�QHZ�WHQDQWV��UHWDLQLQJ�
   existing tenants as well as upgrading the properties in prime areas with a view of attracting 
   better offers;
��6DOH�DQG�RU�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�LGOH�EDUH�ODQG�LQ�RXU�SRUWIROLR��DQG
��%UHDNLQJ�LQWR�QHZ�JURXQGV�LQ�WKH�UHDO�HVWDWH�GHYHORSPHQW�VSDFH�
  
    In achieving the above, we did not lose sight of our commitment to deliver value to our clients 
   and returns to Shareholders. Your Management’s philosophy and long term focus is echoed by 
   our emphasis on various building blocks which we believe will be the primary drivers for growth. 

These are:

1.  People
Developing the skills and abilities of our team is core to our strategy to empower our people to 
achieve their personal ambition, have a good sense of well-being at work and deliver great 
experiences to our clients. 

2. Governance Structure
We are committed to safeguarding the interests of our stakeholders and recognise the 
importance of good corporate governance; we established a dedicated governance structure 
to drive, measure and manage collaboration among our divisions. This is to ensure protection of 
our clients’ and shareholders’ interests.

3. Social Responsibility
Through our Corporate Social activities, we are taking greater responsibilities not just for our staff 
and our clients but also for the larger environment.

In summary our philosophy is based on our catch phrase: execution perfected, excellence 
GHOLYHUHG��WKLV�LV�WR�GULYH�ORQJ�WHUP�ÀQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH��6R�ZKDW�ZDV�RXU�SHUIRUPDQFH"

Performance
Our annual report and accounts prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards presents the operating results of the Company for the year ended December 
31, 2013. In line with our foundation of sound corporate governance and our adherence to 
UHJXODWRU\�VWDQGDUGV��,)56�KDV�SURYLGHG�D�XQLIRUP�DQG�FRQVLVWHQW�EDVLV�RI�SUHSDULQJ�RXU�ÀQDQFLDO�
information for comparison and greater transparency.

$IULODQG�DFKLHYHG�VWURQJ�ÀQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�UHVXOWV�LQ�)<������DV�HYLGHQFHG�E\�YDULRXV�NH\�
performance indicators.

Financial performance
7KH�&RPSDQ\�DFKLHYHG�UHYHQXH�RI�1������ELOOLRQ� IRU� WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�
2013. The revenue stream of the Company comprises fees and commissions, contract income, 
rental income. Furthermore, we earned revenue from the disposal of non-core assets as well the 
net gain from the valuation of existing properties. 

STATEMENTS AND OPERATIONS
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7KH�&RPSDQ\�DFKLHYHG�D�SURÀW�EHIRUH�WD[��3%7��RI�1�������PLOOLRQ�IRU�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������7KLV�UHSUHVHQWV�DQ�
LQFUHDVH�RI��������IURP�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�1������PLOOLRQ�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������3URÀW�DIWHU�WD[��3$7��DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�
Company was N281.94 million, which is 747% above the position of N33.26 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. 

Financial Position
7KH�&RPSDQ\·V�WRWDO�DVVHWV�VWRRG�DW�1������ELOOLRQ�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������VKRZLQJ�D�VLJQLÀFDQW�LQFUHDVH�RI������IURP�1��������
million as at 31 December 2012. Furthermore, the shareholders’ funds rose from N549.386 million to N2.827 billion representing an 
LQFUHDVH�RI�������7KH�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WRWDO�DVVHWV�DQG�VKDUHKROGHUV·�IXQGV�DUH�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�VSXQ�RII�DVVHWV�DQG�SURÀWV�UHDOL]HG�IURP�
operations during the year.

Outlook
7KH������ ÀQDQFLDO� \HDU�SURPLVHV� WR�EH�YHU\�SRVLWLYH�DV�ZH�DUH�ZHOO�RQ� WUDFN� WR�DJDLQ�GHOLYHU�RQ�DOO�RXU� VHW�REMHFWLYHV��2XU� NH\�
WDUJHW� LV� WR�JURZ�RXU� UHYHQXHV�DERYH� WKH�1��ELOOLRQ�PDUN�ZLWK� WKH� LPSDFW�RQ� LQFUHDVHG�SURÀWDELOLW\�GXULQJ� WKH� \HDU��:H� LQWHQG�
to achieve these by focusing on maximizing and monetizing our real estate portfolio through optimized rentals and disposals, 
continued provision of excellent facilities and project management services. The Company will also be known for leveraging new 
FRPSHWHQFLHV��FDSDELOLWLHV�DQG�H[SHULHQFHV�ZLWK�ZHOO�GHÀQHG�DQG�VWDQGDUGL]HG�SURFHVVHV�DV�ZHOO�DV�FRQWLQXRXV�LPSURYHPHQWV�

/DVWO\��ZH�VKDOO�HVWDEOLVK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�EUDQG�DV�D�GRPLQDQW�UHDO�HVWDWH�SOD\HU�WKURXJK�WKH�ODQGPDUN�ÁDJVKLS�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�
Falomo Shopping Mall in FY 2014.

Closing
In closing, I would like to thank the Board of Directors, the management and staff for their commitment and support. We continually 
reiterate our resolve to achieve the Company’s set goals and objectives, whilst focusing on our mission to be Africa’s most sought-
after real estate company.

Uzoamaka Oshogwe
0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU

STATEMENTS AND OPERATIONS
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Afriland Properties Plc (“Afriland” or the “Company”) is committed to upholding the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance through the adoption of a robust Corporate Governance 
framework, which ensures the promotion of effective governance through the strategic 
direction and oversight by the Board. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Afriland complied with the provisions of the Code 
of Corporate Governance issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) and all extant 
laws and regulations bordering on governance.   

1.    Overview
The Company has implemented corporate governance policies and standards to encourage 
good and transparent corporate governance practices as it is the Company’s belief that 
such governance practices has a direct correlation with the Company’s performance and its 
commitment to all stakeholders.

With the transformation of the Company from a private limited company to a public limited 
company during the year in question, the Board approved the following governance policies: 

��%RDUG�*RYHUQDQFH�DQG�%RDUG�&RPPLWWHHV�*RYHUQDQFH�&KDUWHU�
This Charter provides the governance framework for the Board and Board Committees of 
the Company to promote effective governance. It catalogues the mandate and terms of 
reference, procedures and structures of the Board and Board Committees of the Company.  

��([HFXWLYH�0DQDJHPHQW�&RPPLWWHH�&KDUWHU�
This Charter is responsible for directing the affairs of the Executive Management team of 
the Company in the running of the Company’s day-to-day operations. The Charter sets the 
membership, terms of reference and role of the Committee members.

��&RGH�RI�&RQGXFW�
The Code of Conduct sets out the expected standards of behavior and ethical responsibilities 
of directors, employees, vendors and other third parties who have any form of dealings with the 
Company.

2.    Board Of Directors

Introduction
The principal role of the Company’s Board of Directors is to provide overall guidance and policy 
direction to the Management of the Company with key roles focused on strategic direction, 
policy formulation, decision making and oversight.  

The corporate governance principles of the Company rest on the Board of Directors to ensure 
due compliance and alignment with acceptable corporate governance standards.

2.1  Board Structure
7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�FRQVLVWV�RI�ÀYH�PHPEHUV�PDGH�XS�RI�RQH�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�DQG���1RQ�
Executive Directors. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 
Cap C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 (CAMA) and the Board Governance Charter of 
the Company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors presides over Board proceedings.

�����&KDLUPDQ�DQG�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU�3RVLWLRQV
7KH� UROH�RI� WKH�&KDLUPDQ�DQG�&KLHI� ([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU�DUH� VHSDUDWHG�DQG�FOHDUO\�GHÀQHG� LQ�
compliance with corporate governance rules on the roles and responsibilities of the Board 
members. The Chairman is not involved in the day-to day operations of the Company and is not 
a member of any sub-committee of the Board.

7KH� &KLHI� ([HFXWLYH� 2IÀFHU� LV� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� WKH� GD\�WR�GD\� UXQQLQJ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� DQG�
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG·V�VWUDWHJ\�DQG�SROLF\��7KH�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IÀFHU�LV�DVVLVWHG�E\�WKH�
Executive Management team.  

2.3  Non-Executive Directors
The non-executive Board members possess strong knowledge of the Company’s business and 
usually contribute actively to Board’s meetings. 

In choosing Directors and in accordance with the Company’s Board Charter, the Company 
sought individuals who have very high integrity, a good image and reputation, are business 
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savvy, have shareholder orientation and a genuine interest in and commitment to the Company. The Company’s Directors also 
have a wealth of industry expertise across the core areas of Real Estate Management, Finance, Project Development, Project 
Management and Facilities Management.

2.4   Proceedings and frequency of meetings
The Board meets at least once every quarter or as frequently as the Board’s attention may be required on any situation which may 
DULVH��6XIÀFLHQW�QRWLFHV�ZLWK�FOHDU�DJHQGD�UHSRUWV�DUH�XVXDOO\�JLYHQ�SULRU�WR�FRQYHQLQJ�VXFK�PHHWLQJV��$OO�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�DFFHVV�WR�
the Company Secretary who is appointed and removed by the Board and is also responsible to the Board. The details of Directors’ 
attendance of Board meetings are disclosed on page 15 of the Annual Reports.

2.5  Delegation of Authority
7KH�%RDUG�HVWDEOLVKHV�IRUPDO�GHOHJDWLRQV�RI�DXWKRULW\��GHÀQLQJ�WKH�OLPLWV�RI�0DQDJHPHQW·V�SRZHU�DQG�DXWKRULW\�DQG�GHOHJDWLQJ�WR�
Management certain powers to run the day-to-day operations of the Company. The delegation of authority conforms to statutory 
limitations specifying responsibilities of the Board that cannot be delegated to Management. Any responsibility not delegated 
remains with the Board and its committees. 

2.6   Reporting and Control
7KH�%RDUG�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DQG�HQVXUHV�SURSHU�ÀQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�DV�ZHOO�DV�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�RI�VWURQJ�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�SURFHGXUHV�

2.7   Membership of the Board 
During the year under review, a number of changes took place at the Board level. Mr. Emmanuel Nnorom and Mr. Kennedy Uzoka 
resigned from the Board on 2nd January, 2013. Erelu Angela Adebayo, Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire, Mr. Ike Ogbue and Mr. Samuel 
Nwanze were appointed to the Board on 2nd January, 2013

Consequent upon the foregoing, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised the following as at the end of the year:

Erelu Angela Adebayo  - Chairman
Mrs. Uzoamaka Osogwe                 - Managing Director/CEO
Mr. Samuel Nwanze  - Non Executive Director
Ms Olayinka Ogunsulire                 - Non Executive Director
Mr. Ike Ogbue   - Non Executive Director

2.8   Board Meeting Attendance
The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board and members attendance:

        Directors                       No. of Meetings                Date of Held                 No of meetings                                                    
                                                              Held                                                                                  attended
  

Erelu Angela Adebayo                 5            28th February, 2013                                5
                                                                                            13th May, 2013
                                                                                            25th September, 2013
                                                                                            16th December, 2013
                                                                                            20th December, 2013
 
Mrs. Uzoamaka Oshogwe                5            28th February, 2013                                5   
                13th May, 2013
                                                                                            25th September, 2013
                                                                                            16th December, 2013
                                20th December, 2013   
                
Mr. Samuel Nwanze                5                      28th February, 2013                                5 
                                                                                            13th May, 2013
                                                                                            25th September, 2013
                                                                                            16th December, 2013
                                                                                            20th December, 2013

Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire                5            28th February, 2013                                5                                                                                                                                     
                                                                       13th May, 2013
                                                                                            25th September, 2013
                                                                                            16th December, 2013
                                                                                            20th December, 2013                              

Mr. Ike Ogbue                                5             28th February, 2013                3                         
                                                                                             13th May, 2013
                                                                                             25th September, 2013
                                                                                             16th December, 2013                             
                                                                                             20th December, 2013
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2.9       Board Committees 
The Board Committees of the Company comprise a majority of Non-Executive Directors tasked with the performance of 
various functions as delegated by the Board in the discharge of their responsibilities to the shareholders. 

The Board Committees are as follows:

2.9.1   Risk & Governance Committee 
The Risk and Governance Committee (RGC) is tasked with the following terms of reference:

���(VWDEOLVK�SURFHGXUHV�IRU�WKH�QRPLQDWLRQ�RI�'LUHFWRUV
���$GYLVH�DQG�UHFRPPHQG�WR�WKH�%RDUG�WKH�FRPSRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�
���$SSURYH�UHFUXLWPHQWV��SURPRWLRQV��UHGHSOR\PHQWV�DQG�GLVHQJDJHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KHDGV�RI�GHSDUWPHQWV�WKDW�
    make up the Executive Management Committee
���5HYLHZ�DQG�HYDOXDWH�WKH�VNLOOV�RI�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�
���5HFRPPHQG�WR�WKH�%RDUG�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�DOO�VWDII�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�VXEVLGLDU\�%RDUGV��
���$GYLVH�WKH�%RDUG�RQ�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�SROLFLHV�
���5HYLHZ�DQG�DSSURYH�DOO�KXPDQ�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�JRYHUQDQFH�SROLFLHV�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\
���5HYLHZ�DQG�UHFRPPHQG�WR�WKH�%RDUG�DQG�6KDUHKROGHUV�DQ\�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�PHPRUDQGXP�DQG�DUWLFOHV�RI�DVVRFLDWLRQ��
��(YDOXDWH�DQG�DSSUDLVH�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI� WKH�%RDUG�DQG�%RDUG�&RPPLWWHHV�DQG� LWV�PHPEHUV�DQQXDOO\� LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ� 
    with consultants. 
���0RQLWRU�FRPSOLDQFH�RI�DOO�OHJDO�DQG�UHJXODWRU\�UHTXLUHPHQW
���5HYLHZ�$XGLW�H[FHSWLRQ�UHSRUWV��IUDXG�ORVHV�DQG�PDNH�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�IRU�FRQWURO�PHDVXUHV
���(QVXUH�WKDW�ULVN�DVVHVVPHQWV�DUH�SHUIRUPHG�RQ�D�FRQWLQXDO�EDVLV
���0RQLWRU�DQG�DVVHVV�WKH�LQWHJULW\�RI�WKH�RYHUDOO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�IUDPHZRUN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\

2.9.2   Membership of the Committee comprises of three non-executive directors as follows:
           Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire                -  Chairman
           Mr. Samuel Nwanze                                -  Member
           Mr. Ike Ogbue                 -  Member
    

The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the RGC and members attendance:

       Directors                           No. of Meetings     Date of Held                             No of meetings                                                      
                                                                   Held                                                                                        attended

  Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire                     3            13th May, 2013                                                  3                                       
                                                                             25th September, 2013
                                                                                            13th December, 2013

  Mr. Samuel Nwanze                     3            13th May, 2013                                                  3                                
                                                                                            25th September, 2013
                                                                                            13th December, 2013 
  
  Mr. Ike Ogbue                                    3            13th May, 2013                                                  2                         
                                               25th September, 2013
                                                                                            13th December, 2013
 

2.9.3   Finance & General Purpose Committee
The Finance & General Purpose Committee (F&GPC) is tasked with the following terms of reference: 

��'LVFKDUJH�WKH�%RDUG·V�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�ZLWK�UHJDUG�WR�VWUDWHJLF�GLUHFWLRQ�DQG�EXGJHWLQJ�
��3URYLGH�RYHUVLJKW�RQ�ÀQDQFLDO�PDWWHUV�DQG�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
��5HYLHZ�DQG�UHFRPPHQG�LQYHVWPHQW�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�RU�LQLWLDWLYHV�WR�WKH�%RDUG�IRU�GHFLVLRQ�
��5HFRPPHQG�ÀQDQFLDO�DQG�LQYHVWPHQW�GHFLVLRQV�ZLWKLQ�LWV�DSSURYHG�OLPLWV�
��0RQLWRU�DQG�DVVHVV� WKH�RYHUDOO� LQWHJULW\�RI� WKH�ÀQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�GLVFORVXUHV�RI� WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�FRQGLWLRQ�DQG� UHVXOWV� 

              of the Company.
��)RUPXODWH�DQG�VKDSH�WKH�VWUDWHJ\�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
��5HYLHZ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�LQYHVWPHQW�SRUWIROLR
��5HFRPPHQG�&RPSDQ\�SROLFLHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�ULVN��ÀQDQFH�DQG�LQYHVWPHQW

Membership of the Committee comprises of three non-executive directors as follows:

Mr. Samuel Nwanze                  - Chairman
Mrs. Uzoamaka Oshogwe  - Member
Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire  - Member
Mr. Ike Ogbue   - Member
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The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the F&GPC and members attendance:

            Directors                     No. of Meetings              Date of Held                No of meetings                                                      
                                                             Held                                                                                  attended

  Mr. Samuel Nwanze               5                           27th March, 2013                                    5                                            
                                                                                           13th May, 2013
                                                                                           13th June, 2013
                                                                                           25th September, 2013
                                                                                           13th December, 2013
  
  Mrs. Uzoamaka Oshogwe               5                            27th March, 2013                                     5
                                                                                            13th May, 2013
                                                                                            13th June, 2013
                                                                                            25th September, 2013
                                                                                            13th December, 2013
 
  Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire              5                             27th March, 2013                                  5
                                                                                             13th May, 2013
                                                                                             13th June, 2013
                                                                                             25th September, 2013
                                                                                             13th December, 2013  

  Mr. Ike Ogbue                              5                             27th March, 2013
                                                                                             13th May, 2013
                                                                       13th June, 2013
                                                                       25th September, 2013                          2                                                                                                                            
                                                                                             13th December, 2013 

2.9.4   Statutory Audit Committee
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) and the SEC Code, preparations are 
in progress for the introduction of the Statutory Audit Committee. The Committee will be constituted at this Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

3.  The Company Secretary
The Company Secretary ensures adequate dissemination of information among Board members and between the Board and 
the management of the company. In furtherance of Board and Committee meetings, the Company Secretary undertakes the 
preparation of the necessary papers and other documents requisite for the success in deliberations. The Company Secretary is 
responsible for the induction of new Directors and the provision of ongoing training for the Non Executive Directors. The Company 
Secretary is a source through which the shareholders of the Company access information on the Company.

7KH�RIÀFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�HQVXUHV�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�FRPSOLHV�ZLWK�WKH�UHOHYDQW�UHJXODWRU\�ODZV�LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�
and Securities Act, the SEC Rules and Regulations, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Code of Corporate Governance, 
the Companies an Allied Matters Act and, the Nigeria Stock Exchange Rules and Regulations.

The procedure for the appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a matter for the Board.

4.  Shareholders
The Company ensures the existence of adequate interaction among the shareholders, the Management and the Board of the 
Company. The Company’s General Meetings provide shareholders the platform to contribute to the administration of the Company. 
The Annual General Meetings (AGMs) are held in accessible locations and are open to shareholders or their proxies. The AGMs are 
conducted in a manner that facilitates shareholders participation in accordance with relevant regulatory and statutory requirements. 
The Company encourages shareholders to attend these meetings whilst ensuring that notices of meetings and other information 
UHTXLUHG�E\� VKDUHKROGHUV� WR�PDNH� LQIRUPHG�GHFLVLRQV�DUH�GLVSDWFKHG� LQ�D� WLPHO\�PDQQHU�� 7KH�RIÀFH�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�
additionally affords shareholders channels of communication to the Board and the Management of the Company.

It is the responsibility of the shareholders to approve the appointment of Directors and to grant other approvals that are required by 
law or the Articles of Association of the Company.

With the establishment of a Statutory Audit Committee in line with section 359 of the CAMA and the SEC Code, the shareholders will 
through its representatives assume responsibility for the integrity of the Company’s audited accounts. Its role will include ensuring 
that the audit and risk management policies of the Company adhere to the appropriate legal standards. The committee will among 
other functions provide oversight to the activities of the Company’s internal and External Audit.

5. Whistle Blowing Policy
The Company in observance of sound corporate governance principles and in adherence with the SEC Code has an established 
:KLVWOH�%ORZLQJ�3ROLF\��7KLV�3ROLF\�SURYLGHV�D�FRQÀGHQWLDO�DYHQXH�IRU�UHSRUWLQJ�FDVHV�RI�IUDXG�DQG�RWKHU�IRUPV�RI�PLVFRQGXFW�ZKLFK�DUH�
inimical to the Company’s ethos. The Company has a dedicated phone number and an e-mail address through which complaints/
reports can be received. The email address is whistleblowing@afrilandproperties.com 
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The directors have the pleasure in presenting to the members of Afriland Properties Plc (“the Company”) their report together with 
WKH�DXGLWHG�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������

Legal form
Afriland Properties Plc, formerly known as UBA Properties Limited was incorporated as a private limited liability Company on 14 March 
2007 and is headquartered in Lagos, Nigeria with other satellite locations in Abuja, Port-Harcourt, Benin and Ibadan. The Company 
began operations on 1 February 2011.

It is a Nigerian based property management, investment and development company offering end-to-end services along the real 
estate value chain, from management to joint venture investments. With one of the largest land banks in Nigeria, Afriland is pioneer-
ing the opportunities presented by an institutional approach to real estate, serving niche markets throughout Africa. 

Afriland Properties Plc was borne out of United Bank of Africa Plc’s (“UBA”) decision to evolve into a commercial bank ring fenced 
from all other non-commercial banking activities. As a result of the restructuring, Afriland Properties Plc owns all the excess real estate 
assets of the bank with a view to being listed on the NSE in the near future. UBA transferred all its excess real estate assets to Afriland 
Properties Plc via the execution of instruments transferring the assets to Afriland.  The total assets transferred to Afriland Properties Plc 
as at the effective date of 3 January 2013 was N2.496 billion, and this amount now forms part of the equity capital of the company.

Afriland Properties Plc’s aim is to provide adequate infrastructural development as well as to fully optimize and commercialize its 
existing real estate portfolio. Afriland Properties Plc targets two (2) key customer segments: Residential and Commercial investors.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the Company is real estate investment and development as well as offering a broad range of real estate 
products/services to the general public. 

State of affairs
In the opinion of the Directors, the state of the Company’s affairs is satisfactory and there has been no material change since the 
UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��ZKLFK�ZRXOG�DIIHFW�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�SUHVHQWHG�

Change in reporting framework
Following the directives of the Regulator, Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria the Company changed its accounting policy from 
Nigerian Statements of Accounting Standard (SAS) to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in 2013.

Dividend
The Directors have recommended the payment of a dividend of 10 kobo per share amounting to N100 million (2012: Nil) on the is-
sued share capital of 1,000,000,000 shares of 50 kobo each for the year ended 31 December 2013. Withholding tax at the applicable 
rate will be deducted at the time of payment.

Results for the year
                                                                                                                             2013                                 2012  
                                                                                                                           N’000                               N’000  

Net operating income                                                                                       595,445                              22,945  
                                                                                                                      =======                            ====== 
3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������
Taxation                                                                                                                     (142,808)                                    -
                                                                                                                      -------------                            -----------
3URÀW�DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������
                                                                                                                      =======                            ======

Property, plant and equipment
,QIRUPDWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��33(��LV�VKRZQ�LQ�1RWH����WR�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��,Q�WKH�RSLQLRQ�
RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV��WKH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�33(�LV�QRW�OHVV�WKDQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Acquisition of own shares
The Company has not purchased any of its own shares during the year under review (2012: Nil).

Directors’ interest in shares
The Directors who served during the year were as follows:

Director    Position    Date of appointment
Erelu Angela Adebayo  Chairman    2 January 2013
Mrs. Uzo Oshogwe   Managing Director/CEO                12 March 2012
Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire  Non-Executive Director  2 January 2013
Mr. Ike Ogbue   Non-Executive Director  2 January 2013
Mr. Samuel Nwanze  Non-Executive Director  2 January 2013

Pursuant to Sections 275 and 276 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, the 
GLUHFW�DQG�LQGLUHFW�LQWHUHVW�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�LQ�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DV�QRWLÀHG�E\�WKHP�DQG�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�5HJLVWHU�LV�DV�IROORZV�
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      Ordinary shares of 50 kobo each
     31/12/2013   31/12/2012
                                   Direct Holding Indirect Holding Direct Holding Indirect Holding   
Erelu Angela Adebayo    4,963  -                4,963  -
Mrs. Uzo Oshogwe     6,710  -          6,710  -
Ms. Olayinka Ogunsulire      226  -             226  -
Mr. Ike Ogbue           -  -                  -  -
Mr. Samuel Nwanze   7,575  -            7,575  -
   

Directors’ interest in contracts
1RQH�RI� WKH�'LUHFWRUV�KDV�QRWLÀHG� WKH�&RPSDQ\� IRU� WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�6HFWLRQ�����RI� WKH�&RPSDQLHV�DQG�$OOLHG�0DWWHUV�$FW��&$3�
C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 of any discloseable interest in contracts with which the Company is involved as at 31 
December 2013 (2012: Nil). 

Analysis of shareholding 
According to the Register of Members, the following shareholders held more than 5% of the ordinary shares of the Company issued 
as at 31 December 2013.
      
             2013                                             2012
    Numbers of Shares                     %                          Numbers of Shares       % 
ED & M Investment Limited                 93,621,197  9.36                     -         -
UBA Staff Investment Trust Scheme                75,141,638  7.51                        -         -
Oceanic Date Ltd                  71,471,056  7.15                       -         -
UBA Assets Management Limited                  -       -        9,999,998                   99.99

Shareholding range analysis
The shareholding range analysis as at 31 December 2013 is shown below:

Range    No. of          Holders         Holders   Units                         Units                 Units
                  Holders              %  Cum.         %                Cum 
1                     - 10,000  277,145             98.62 277,145             130,051,440  13.01      130,051,440
10,001            - 50,000      3,100               1.10 280,245               64,956,381         6.50       195,007,821
50,001            - 100,000         389               0.14 280,634               28,044,372      2.80       223,052,193
100,001          - 500,000         283               0.10 280,917               56,246,867      5.62       279,299,060
500,001          - 5,000,000            85             0.03 281,002             131,062,039   13.11       410,361,099
5,000,001       - 50,000,000                    25             0.01 281,027             375,511,224                  37.55       785,872,323
50,000,001     - 200,000,000                        3             0.00 281,030             214,127,677     21.41    1,000,000,000
       ---------              ------                         ---------------                   -------    
    281,030               100                1,000,000,000     100    
    ======              ====                ===========     ====

Charitable contributions and donations
The Company made contribution to charities of N8,580,756 during the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Employment and Employees

Employment of disabled persons
No disabled person was employed by the Company during the year.  However, it is the Company’s policy to consider disabled 
persons for employment, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned.

Health, Safety and Welfare of employees at Work
The Company places high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees in their places of work. To this end, the 
Company has various forms of insurance policies including group life insurance to adequately secure and protect its employees. The 
Company also has in place a healthcare insurance scheme for employees’ and their immediate family members’ medical needs.

Employees’ Interest and Training
The Company places considerable value on the development of its employees and has continued its practice of keeping them 
informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Company. This is 
achieved through formal and informal meetings and other forms of communication. The Company organizes in-house and external 
training for its employees based on the requirements of their job. Overseas courses are also arranged where and when necessary.

Events after the reporting date
The merger exercise between the Company and Heirs Real Estate Limited (HRE) was formally approved by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) on 10 March 2014. This was sequel to the court ordered extra-ordinary general meeting held on 20 
December 2013 where the shareholders approved the merger of the two entities, with Afriland Properties Plc being the acquiring 
FRPSDQ\��7KH�PHUJHU�KDV�QR�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU������DV�SUHVHQWHG��7KH�HQODUJHG�
HQWLW\�KDV�LWV�DXWKRUL]HG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�LQFUHDVHG�WR���������������VKDUHV�RI����NRER�HDFK�DQG�WKLV�VKDOO�EH�UHÁHFWHG�RQ�IXWXUH�ÀQDQFLDO�
statements with the net assets of the acquired company.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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As stated in Note 30, there are no other events or transactions that have occurred since the reporting date which would have a 
PDWHULDO�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�SUHVHQWHG�

)RUPDW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV
7KH� ÀQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� $IULODQG� 3URSHUWLHV� 3OF� KDYH� EHHQ� SUHSDUHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� UHSRUWLQJ� DQG� SUHVHQWDWLRQ�
requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Auditors
(UQVW�	�<RXQJ�ZHUH�DSSRLQWHG�DV�DXGLWRUV�RQ����'HFHPEHU������DQG�KDYH�H[SUHVVHG�WKHLU�ZLOOLQJQHVV�WR�FRQWLQXH�LQ�RIÀFH�DV�WKH�
Company’s auditors in accordance with Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation 
of Nigeria 2004. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

COMPANY SECRETARY 
30 April 2014
FRC/2013/NBA/00000004696

 
7KH�&RPSDQLHV�DQG�$OOLHG�0DWWHUV�$FW��&$3�&���/DZV�RI�WKH�)HGHUDWLRQ�RI�1LJHULD�������UHTXLUHV�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�SUHSDUH�ÀQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�HDFK�ÀQDQFLDO�\HDU�WKDW�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�
\HDU�DQG�RI�LWV�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��7KH�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�LQFOXGH�HQVXULQJ�WKDW�WKH�FRPSDQ\��
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

D���NHHSV�SURSHU�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV�WKDW�GLVFORVH��ZLWK�UHDVRQDEOH�DFFXUDF\��WKH��ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�FRPSO\�����
      with the requirements of the Companies  and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004;
b)  establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities; and
F���SUHSDUHV�LWV�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�XVLQJ�VXLWDEOH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�VXSSRUWHG�E\��UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�SUXGHQW�MXGJPHQWV�DQG�
     estimates, and are consistently applied.

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DFFHSW�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�WKH�DQQXDO�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZKLFK�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�XVLQJ�DSSURSULDWH�DFFRXQWLQJ�
policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standard Board, Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No 6, 2011 and the 
provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�RI�WKH�RSLQLRQ�WKDW�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�DIIDLUV�RI� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�DQG�RI�LWV�SURÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������7KH�'LUHFWRUV�IXUWKHU�DFFHSW�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH�
RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV�WKDW�PD\�EH�UHOLHG�XSRQ�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DV�ZHOO�DV�DGHTXDWH�V\VWHPV�RI�LQWHUQDO�
ÀQDQFLDO�FRQWURO�

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at least twelve 
months from the date of this statement.

---------------------------------       ------------------------------------
Director                                                                                                                                    Director
        
30 April 2014        30 April 2014
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                         2013  2012
                              Notes                               N’000               N’000
  
Contract income                   5                 124,859            -
Fees and commission                 6              210,874              14,856
Rental income                   255,546                8,089
Service charge income                      4,166         -
              --------------          -----------
Operating income                  595,445              22,945
   
Other operating income                 7        27    207
Administrative expenses                 8           (484,886)              (2,392)
3URÀW�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV� � � � � ������������������� � ��������
Net gain from fair value adjustments on
 investment properties               13                 84,151         -
               -------------          -----------
2SHUDWLQJ�SURÀW� � � � � � � � ������������������ �������������������

Interest income                  9                61,142              12,499
                ------------          -----------
3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � � � � � � ������������������� �������������������
   
Income tax expense                10           (142,808)         -
                ------------          -----------
3URÀW�DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ� � � � � � � ������������������� �������������������

Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income that will not 
�VXEVHTXHQWO\�EH�UHFODVVLÀHG�WR�SURÀW�RU�ORVV� � � � � � �������� ������������������������
                   ----------              --------
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax           -         -
                ------------          -----------
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax               281,939              33,259
                   ======              =====
Earnings per share:   
Basic/ diluted earnings per share (Naira)              11                       N0.28               N0.03
   

6HH�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
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                    2013        2012             1 Jan. 2012
       Notes           N’000      N’000       N’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment        12          21,486              1        1,396
Investment properties        13     2,554,729               -                -
Prepayment         14          15,600               -                -
          ---------------    ----------     -----------
            2,591,815              1        1,396
          ---------------    ----------     -----------

Current assets    
Trade and other receivables       15        331,799          778                  -
Advance to contractors        16          34,650               -                -
Prepayments         17            6,497               -                -
Called-up share capital        18    -   500,000     500,000
Cash and short-term deposits       19     1,269,407   317,240       60,949
         ---------------- -------------  -------------
            1,642,353   818,018     560,949
         ---------------- -------------   -------------
Total Assets           4,234,168   818,019     562,345
         ---------------- -------------  -------------

Equity and liabilities
Equity    
Issued share capital          20        500,000   500,000     500,000
Share premium          20     1,996,000                          -                -
Retained earnings         21        331,325     49,386                      16,127
          ---------------            -------------  -------------
Total Equity           2,827,325   549,386                    516,127
           ---------------  ------------  -------------

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability        24          63,853               -                -
               -----------       -------         -------
                 63,853              -                -
               -----------      --------         -------

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
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                               2013        2012             1 Jan. 2012
                    Notes          N’000     N’000       N’000

Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables      22        991,234  268,633       46,218
Deferred income       23        272,801              -                               -
Income tax payable      24          78,955              -                -
                      ---------------           ------------  -----------
            1,342,990  268,633      46,218
                      ---------------         -------------  -----------
Total Liabilities          1,406,843  268,633      46,218
                     ----------------         -------------              -------------
Total Equity and Liabilities          4,234,168   818,019    562,345
                      ---------------           ------------               -------------

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 30 April 2014 by:

------------------------------------- 
Chairman
FRC/2014/IODN/00000007796 
 

----------------------------------------
Managing Director
FRC/2013/IODN/00000004689

--------------------------------------
&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IÀFHU

FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002755

6HH�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Continued

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
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           Share        Share          Retained  
          Capital    Premium            Earnings                   Total
           N’000       N’000                N’000                        N’000

As at 1 January 2013      500,000               -               49,386              549,386

Additions during the year                 -                1,996,000                        -            2,496,000

3URÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � � � � �������������� � ��������������� �������������������� ���������������������
 
Other comprehensive income                -               -                        -
        ------------              ---------------           -------------         ---------------
At 31 December 2013      500,000                1,996,000             331,325            2,827,325
        ------------              ---------------           -------------         ---------------

As at 1 January 2012     500,000               -               16,127              516,127
     
3URÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � � � � �������������� � ��������������� ��������������������� ���������������������

Other comprehensive income                -               -                        -           -

        ------------     ----------             -----------            -------------
At 31 December 2012      500,000               -              49,386              549,386
        ------------     ----------             -----------            -------------

                                 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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                 Notes         2013                    2012
              N’000                  N’000
Operating activities   
Cash receipts from customers        636,154                 23,152
Payment to suppliers/ employees            86,061             220,640
VAT Paid                         -                           -
Income tax paid                     -           -   
           -----------                ----------
1HW�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � � ��� �������������������������������
            ----------                ----------
Investing activities  
Purchase of property, plant and equipment    12    (25,480)          -
Purchase of investment properties       13    (10,772)           -
Proceeds from disposal of investing properties (net)      205,062                   -
Interest income        9      61,142  12,499
                                                       -------------            ------------
1HW�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � � � ������������ ������
         -------------            ------------
   
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents       952,167               256,291
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January        317,240  60,949
                      ---------------          --------------
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December   19 1,269,407               317,240
                       --------------           -------------

6HH�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Afriland Properties Plc, formerly known as UBA properties Limited was incorporated as a private Limited Liability Company 
on 14 March 2007 and became a public company in 2011. 

$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF��$33��LV�D�FRPSDQ\�GRPLFLOHG�LQ�1LJHULD��7KH�DGGUHVV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�UHJLVWHUHG�RIÀFH�LV�����
Etim Inyang Crescent, Victoria Island, Lagos.  The Company is a property management, investment and development 
company offering end-to-end services along the real estate value chain, from management to joint venture investments.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

a. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
7KH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��,)56��
as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and in accordance with Companies and Allied 
0DWWHUV�$FW��&$3�&���/DZV�RI�WKH�)HGHUDWLRQ�RI�1LJHULD�������7KLV�LV�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ÀUVW�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�SUHSDUHG�
in accordance with IFRS therefore; IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards has been 
applied.

$Q�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�KRZ�WKH�WUDQVLWLRQ�WR�,)56V�KDV�DIIHFWHG�WKH�UHSRUWHG�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��ÀQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�FDVK�
ÁRZV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�SURYLGHG�LQ�1RWH����7KLV�QRWH�LQFOXGHV�UHFRQFLOLDWLRQV�RI�HTXLW\�DQG�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�IRU�FRPSDUDWLYH�
periods reported under previous GAAP (Nigerian GAAP) to those reported for this year under IFRS. 

7KH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�DXWKRULVHG�IRU�LVVXH�E\�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RQ����$SULO������

b. INCOME AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Afriland Properties Plc has elected to present a single statement of comprehensive income and presents its expenses 
by nature.

7KH�&RPSDQ\�UHSRUWV�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�XVLQJ�WKH�GLUHFW�PHWKRG��,QWHUHVW�UHFHLYHG�LV�SUHVHQWHG�ZLWKLQ�
LQYHVWLQJ�FDVK�ÁRZV�� LQWHUHVW�SDLG� LV�SUHVHQWHG�ZLWKLQ�RSHUDWLQJ�FDVK�ÁRZV�� 7KH�DFTXLVLWLRQV�RI� LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�
DUH�GLVFORVHG�DV�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�EHFDXVH�WKLV�PRVW�DSSURSULDWHO\�UHÁHFWV�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�EXVLQHVV�
activities.

c. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
7KHVH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�1LJHULDQ�1DLUD��ZKLFK�LV�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�IXQFWLRQDO�FXUUHQF\��([FHSW�RWKHUZLVH�
LQGLFDWHG��ÀQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�1DLUD�KDYH�EHHQ�URXQGHG�WR�WKH�QHDUHVW�WKRXVDQGV�

d. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
7KHVH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�RQ�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�EDVLV�H[FHSW�IRU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�
��,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�

e. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�PDNH�MXGJHPHQWV��HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�WKDW�
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

-XGJHPHQWV�PDGH�E\�PDQDJHPHQW�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�,)56V�WKDW�KDYH�VLJQLÀFDQW�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
DQG�HVWLPDWHV�ZLWK�D�VLJQLÀFDQW�ULVN�RI�PDWHULDO�DGMXVWPHQW�DUH�GLVFXVVHG�EHORZ�

 TAXES
Uncertainties exist with respect to the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the differences in the 
interpretation of the underlying principles of taxable income, differences arising between the actual results and the 
assumptions made could necessitate future adjustment to tax income and expenses already recorded. The Company 
establishes provisions based on reasonable estimates. 

'HIHUUHG� WD[HV� DUH� UHFRJQLVHG� IRU� DOO� XQXVHG� WD[� ORVVHV� WR� WKH� H[WHQW� WKDW� LW� LV� SUREDEOH� WKDW� WD[DEOH� SURÀW�ZLOO� EH�
DYDLODEOHDJDLQVW�ZKLFK�WKH� ORVVHV�FDQ�EH�XWLOLVHG��6LJQLÀFDQW�PDQDJHPHQW� MXGJHPHQWV� LV� UHTXLUHG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
SURÀWV�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�IXWXUH�WD[�SODQQLQJ�VWUDWHJLHV�

 Further details of taxes are disclosed in Note 10.
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Judgments are utilised in determining the depreciation rates and useful lives of these assets at the end of the period. 
Further details of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 12.

 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
The Company makes use of internal and external valuation experts. All properties are valued by external valuers at least 
HYHU\�ÀYH�\HDUV��7KH�IROORZLQJ�YDOXDWLRQ�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�XVHG��

 EXTERNAL
��7KH�SURSHUW\�LV�QRW�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFWHG�E\�RU�VXEMHFW�WR�FRPSXOVRU\�DFTXLVLWLRQ��URDG�ZLGHQLQJ��QHZ�SURSRVDO�RU�SODQQLQJ�
   scheme;
��7KH�LQWHUHVWV�KHOG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DV�HYLGHQFHG�E\�WLWOH�GHHGV�DUH�JRRG�DQG�PDUNHWDEOH�
��7KH�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�IUHH�IURP�DOO�RQHURXV�FKDUJHV�DQG�UHVWULFWLRQV��DQG
��7KH�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�IUHH�IURP�VWUXFWXUDO��LQIHVWDWLRQ�RU�FRQFHDOHG�GHIHFWLYH�FRQGLWLRQV�

 INTERNAL
 Using an open market valuation method, the following factors were considered:

��$�ZLOOLQJ�EX\HU�
��$�UHDVRQDEOH�SHULRG�ZLWKLQ�ZKLFK�WR�QHJRWLDWH�WKH�VDOH�WDNLQJ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\�DQG�WKH�VWDWH�RI�
   the market;
��1R�DFFRXQW�LV�WR�EH�WDNHQ�RI�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�ELG�E\�D�VSHFLDO�SXUFKDVHU��DQG
��7KH�SURSHUWLHV�VKDOO�EH�IUHHO\�H[SRVHG�WR�WKH�PDUNHW

 Further details of fair value of investment properties are disclosed in Note 33.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
7KH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ�KDYH�EHHQ�FRQVLVWHQWO\�DSSOLHG�WR�DOO�SHULRGV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKHVH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
DQG�LQ�SUHSDULQJ�DQ�RSHQLQJ�,)56�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW���-DQXDU\������IRU�SXUSRVHV�RI�WKH�WUDQVLWLRQ�WR�,)56V�

 The accounting policies have been applied consistently by Company.

a. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is the person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the 
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The Company has determined that its chief operating decision-maker 
LV�WKH�FKLHI�H[HFXWLYH�RIÀFHU��&(2��RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

b. FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of transactions at rates different from those at the date of the transaction, as well as 
unrealized foreign exchange differences on unsettled foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities, are recognized in 
SURÀW�RU�ORVV�

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the 
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or 
SURÀW�RU�ORVV�DUH�DOVR�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�RU�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��UHVSHFWLYHO\��

8QUHDOL]HG�H[FKDQJH�GLIIHUHQFHV�RQ�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV��DUH�D�FRPSRQHQW�
RI�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�WKHLU�HQWLUH�IDLU�YDOXH��)RU�D�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�DQG�IRU�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�ÀQDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��XQUHDOL]HG�H[FKDQJH�GLIIHUHQFHV�DUH�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��)RU�QRQ�
PRQHWDU\�ÀQDQFLDO�LQYHVWPHQWV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH��XQUHDOL]HG�H[FKDQJH�GLIIHUHQFHV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�
income until the asset is sold or becomes impaired. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash 
DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�QHW�LQ�WKH�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�ZLWKLQ�ÀQDQFH�FRVWV�DQG�ÀQDQFH�LQFRPH�UHVSHFWLYHO\��XQOHVV�
they are capitalised.

c. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the company, 
LV�FODVVLÀHG�DV�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�SURSHUW\�WKDW�LV�EHLQJ�FRQVWUXFWHG�RU�GHYHORSHG�IRU�
future use as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing   
costs.
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After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Investment property under construction is measured 
at fair value if the fair value is considered to be reliably determinable. Investment properties under construction for which 
the fair value cannot be determined reliably, but for which the company expects that the fair value of the property will be 
reliably determinable when construction is completed, are measured at cost less impairment until the fair value becomes 
reliably determinable or construction is completed - whichever is earlier. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, 
LI� QHFHVVDU\�� IRU� GLIIHUHQFHV� LQ� WKH� QDWXUH�� ORFDWLRQ� RU� FRQGLWLRQ� RI� WKH� VSHFLÀF� DVVHW�� ,I� WKLV� LQIRUPDWLRQ� LV� QRW� DYDLODEOH��
WKH�&RPSDQ\�XVHV�DOWHUQDWLYH�YDOXDWLRQ�PHWKRGV�� VXFK�DV� UHFHQW�SULFHV�RQ� OHVV�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�RU�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK� ÁRZ�
SURMHFWLRQV��9DOXDWLRQV�DUH�SHUIRUPHG�DV�RI� WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�E\�SURIHVVLRQDO� YDOXHUV�ZKR�KROG� UHFRJQLVHG�DQG�
UHOHYDQW�SURIHVVLRQDO�TXDOLÀFDWLRQV�DQG�KDYH�UHFHQW�H[SHULHQFH� LQ� WKH� ORFDWLRQ�DQG�FDWHJRU\�RI� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�
EHLQJ�YDOXHG��7KHVH�YDOXDWLRQV�IRUP�WKH�EDVLV�IRU�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�LQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�WKDW�
is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the market has become less active continues to 
be measured at fair value. 

The Company makes use of internal and external valuation experts. All properties are valued by external valuers at least every 
ÀYH�\HDUV��,W�PD\�VRPHWLPHV�EH�GLIÀFXOW�WR�GHWHUPLQH�UHOLDEO\�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�XQGHU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��
In order to evaluate whether the fair value of an investment property under construction can be determined reliably, 
management considers the following factors, among others:

���7KH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�FRQWUDFW�
���7KH�VWDJH�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�
���:KHWKHU�WKH�SURMHFW�SURSHUW\�LV�VWDQGDUG��W\SLFDO�IRU�WKH�PDUNHW��RU�QRQ�VWDQGDUG�
���7KH�OHYHO�RI�UHOLDELOLW\�RI�FDVK�LQÁRZV�DIWHU�FRPSOHWLRQ�
���7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�ULVN�VSHFLÀF�WR�WKH�SURSHUW\�
���3DVW�H[SHULHQFH�ZLWK�VLPLODU�FRQVWUXFWLRQV�
���6WDWXV�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SHUPLWV�

7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�UHÁHFWV��DPRQJ�RWKHU�WKLQJV��UHQWDO�LQFRPH�IURP�FXUUHQW�OHDVHV�DQG�RWKHU�DVVXPSWLRQV�
market participants would make when pricing the property under current market conditions.

7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�DOVR�UHÁHFWV��RQ�D�VLPLODU�EDVLV��DQ\�FDVK�RXWÁRZV�WKDW�FRXOG�EH�H[SHFWHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\��6RPH�
RI� WKRVH�RXWÁRZV�DUH� UHFRJQLVHG�DV�D� OLDELOLW\�� LQFOXGLQJ� ÀQDQFH� OHDVH� OLDELOLWLHV� LQ� UHVSHFW�RI� OHDVHKROG� ODQG�FODVVLÀHG�DV�
LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��RWKHUV��LQFOXGLQJ�FRQWLQJHQW�UHQW�SD\PHQWV��DUH�QRW�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

6XEVHTXHQW�H[SHQGLWXUH�LV�FDSLWDOLVHG�WR�WKH�DVVHW·V�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RQO\�ZKHQ�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHÀWV�
DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�H[SHQGLWXUH�ZLOO�ÁRZ�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�LWHP�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\��$OO�RWKHU�UHSDLUV�
and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised.

7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�GRHV�QRW�UHÁHFW�IXWXUH�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�WKDW�ZLOO�LPSURYH�RU�HQKDQFH�WKH�SURSHUW\�
DQG�GRHV�QRW�UHÁHFW�WKH�UHODWHG�IXWXUH�EHQHÀWV�IURP�WKLV�IXWXUH�H[SHQGLWXUH�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�D�UDWLRQDO�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQW�
would take into account when determining the value of the property.

&KDQJHV� LQ�IDLU�YDOXHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG� LQ�WKH�SURÀW�RU� ORVV�� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�GHUHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH\�KDYH�EHHQ�
disposed. Where the Company disposes of a property at fair value in an arm’s length transaction, the carrying value 
LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR�WKH�VDOH�LV�DGMXVWHG�WR�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�SULFH��DQG�WKH�DGMXVWPHQW�LV�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�ZLWKLQ�QHW�
gain from fair value adjustment on investment property.

,I�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�EHFRPHV�RZQHU�RFFXSLHG��LW�LV�UHFODVVLÀHG�DV�SURSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��,WV�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�WKH�
GDWH�RI�UHFODVVLÀFDWLRQ�EHFRPHV�LWV�FRVW�IRU�VXEVHTXHQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SXUSRVHV��:KHUH�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�XQGHUJRHV�D�
change in use, evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale, the property is transferred to inventories. 
A property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting as inventories is its fair value at the date of change in use.

Leasehold investment properties represent properties acquired under government consent for 99 years.

d. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHÀWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LWHP�ZLOO�ÁRZ�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�FRVW�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�
UHOLDEO\��7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�UHSODFHG�FRVW�LV�GHUHFRJQLVHG��$OO�RWKHU�UHSDLUV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�DUH�FKDUJHG�WR�SURÀW�
RU�ORVV�GXULQJ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�DUH�LQFXUUHG��

Land is not depreciated. Leasehold properties are depreciated over their useful lives, unless the lease period is shorter, in 
which case the lease period is used. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their 
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cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

��3ODQW�DQG�PDFKLQHU\�²���WR���\HDUV
��0RWRU�YHKLFOHV�����WR���\HDUV
��)XUQLWXUH��ÀWWLQJV�DQG�HTXLSPHQW���WR���\HDUV
��&RPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQW���WR���\HDUV

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date. 
Where an indication of impairment exists, an asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount 
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds 
DQG�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�DVVHW�DQG�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�IRU�WKH�SHULRG�

e. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the 
Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.

f. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins in hand, unrestricted balances held with banks and highly liquid 
ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�ZLWK�RULJLQDO�PDWXULWLHV�RI�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�PRQWKV��ZKLFK�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�LQVLJQLÀFDQW�ULVN�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKHLU�IDLU�
value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�

g. TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is 
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the 
UHFHLYDEOHV��,I�FROOHFWLRQ�LV�H[SHFWHG�LQ�RQH�\HDU�RU�OHVV��WKH\�DUH�FODVVLÀHG�DV�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV��,I�QRW��WKH\�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�DV�
non-current assets.
Pre-payments are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

h. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
RI�EXVLQHVV�IURP�VXSSOLHUV��$FFRXQWV�SD\DEOHV�DUH�FODVVLÀHG�DV�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�LI�SD\PHQW�LV�GXH�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�RU�OHVV��
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

i. PROVISIONS
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
FDQ�EH�HVWLPDWHG�UHOLDEO\��DQG�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�DQ�RXWÁRZ�RI�HFRQRPLF�EHQHÀWV�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VHWWOH�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�

3URYLVLRQV�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�GLVFRXQWLQJ� WKH�H[SHFWHG� IXWXUH�FDVK�ÁRZV�DW�D�SUH�WD[� UDWH� WKDW� UHÁHFWV�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�
DVVHVVPHQWV�RI� WKH�WLPH�YDOXH�RI�PRQH\�DQG��ZKHUH�DSSURSULDWH�� WKH� ULVNV� VSHFLÀF� WR� WKH� OLDELOLW\�� 7KH�XQZLQGLQJ�RI� WKH�
GLVFRXQW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�ÀQDQFH�FRVW�

$�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�RQHURXV�FRQWUDFWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�H[SHFWHG�EHQHÀWV�WR�EH�GHULYHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IURP�D�FRQWUDFW�
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present 
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the 
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that 
contract.

j. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
6KDUHV�DUH�FODVVLÀHG�DV�HTXLW\�ZKHQ�WKHUH�LV�QR�REOLJDWLRQ�WR�WUDQVIHU�FDVK�RU�RWKHU�DVVHWV�

 SHARE ISSUE COSTS
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of 
the equity instruments.

 DIVIDEND ON ORDINARY SHARES
Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or, if earlier, 
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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k.     BASIC/ DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Company presents basic/ diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
E\�GLYLGLQJ� WKH�SURÀW�RU� ORVV�DWWULEXWDEOH� WR�RUGLQDU\� VKDUHKROGHUV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�E\� WKH�QXPEHU�RI�RUGLQDU\� VKDUHV�
outstanding as at year-end.

'LOXWHG�(36�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�DGMXVWLQJ�WKH�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�WKH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

l.     EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
� ����L��������3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHÀWV
� ����'HÀQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SODQV

$�GHÀQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SODQ�LV�D�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�XQGHU�ZKLFK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�SD\V�À[HG�FRQWULEXWLRQV�LQWR�D�VHSDUDWH�HQWLW\��
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QR� OHJDO�RU�FRQVWUXFWLYH�REOLJDWLRQV�WR�SD\�IXUWKHU�FRQWULEXWLRQV� LI� WKH�IXQG�GRHV�QRW�KROG�VXIÀFLHQW�
DVVHWV�WR�SD\�DOO�HPSOR\HHV�WKH�EHQHÀWV�UHODWLQJ�WR�HPSOR\HH�VHUYLFH�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�DQG�SULRU�SHULRGV�

)RU�GHÀQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SODQV��WKH�&RPSDQ\�SD\V�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�SHQVLRQ�IXQG�DGPLQLVWUDWRUV�RQ�D�VWDWXWRU\�EDVLV��7KH�
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised 
DV�HPSOR\HH�EHQHÀW�H[SHQVH�ZKHQ�WKH\�DUH�GXH�

LL��������6KRUW�WHUP�EHQHÀWV
6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\HH�EHQHÀW� REOLJDWLRQV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�RQ�DQ�XQGLVFRXQWHG�EDVLV� DQG�DUH�H[SHQVHG�DV� WKH� UHODWHG�
service is provided. 

$�SURYLVLRQ�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�IRU�WKH�DPRXQW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�SDLG�XQGHU�VKRUW�WHUP�FDVK�ERQXV�RU�SURÀW�VKDULQJ�SODQV�LI�WKH�
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

m.     DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred income comprises of contract income, service charge received in advance and rents in advance; these are 
recognised in the income statement when earned.

n.     REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable 
for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, rebates and sales related taxes 
but including interest receivable on sales on extended credit and income from the provision of technical services and 
agreements. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future 
HFRQRPLF�EHQHÀWV�ZLOO�ÁRZ�WR�WKH�HQWLW\��

6DOHV�RI�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WLWOH�KDV�SDVVHG�DQG�WKH�VLJQLÀFDQW�ULVNV�DQG�UHZDUGV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�KDYH�EHHQ�
transferred.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in IAS 39.

a.  Construction contracts
7KH�&RPSDQ\�SULQFLSDOO\�RSHUDWHV�À[HG�SULFH�FRQWUDFWV��,I�WKH�RXWFRPH�RI�VXFK�D�FRQWUDFW�FDQ�EH�UHOLDEO\�PHDVXUHG��
revenue associated with the construction contract is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at year end (percentage of completion method).

The stage of completion of a contract may be determined in a variety of ways. The Company uses the method that 
measures reliably the work performed. Depending on the nature of the contract, the methods may include:

(a) the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs;

(b) surveys of work performed; or
(c) completion of a physical proportion of the contract work.

3URJUHVV�SD\PHQWV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�UHFHLYHG�IURP�FXVWRPHUV�RIWHQ�GR�QRW�UHÁHFW�WKH�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG��:KHQ�SD\PHQWV�
DUH�UHFHLYHG�LQ�H[FHVV�RI�ZRUN�GRQH��WKH�SD\PHQWV�DUH�UHFRJQL]HG�DV�GHIHUUHG� LQFRPH�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�
position.  

The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably when: (i) the total contract revenue can be measured 
UHOLDEO\�� �LL�� LW� LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHÀWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ZLOO�ÁRZ�WR�WKH�HQWLW\�� �LLL��ERWK�WKH�
contract costs to complete the contract and the stage of contract completion at the end of the reporting period can 
EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\��DQG��LY��WKH�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW�FDQ�EH�FOHDUO\�LGHQWLÀHG�DQG�PHDVXUHG�
reliably so that actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates. 
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When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably (especially during the early stages of a 
contract): (i) revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable; 
and (ii) contract costs shall be recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. An expected loss on the 
construction contract shall be recognised as an expense immediately.

                Contract revenue
Contract revenue comprise the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any variations in contract work, 
claims and incentive payments (to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and they are capable of 
being reliably measured).

Contract revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

 Contract cost
&RQWUDFW�FRVWV� FRPSULVH�FRVWV� WKDW� UHODWH�GLUHFWO\� WR� WKH� VSHFLÀF�FRQWUDFW�� WKDW�DUH�DWWULEXWDEOH� WR�FRQWUDFW�DFWLYLW\� LQ�
JHQHUDO�DQG�FDQ�EH�DOORFDWHG� WR� WKH�FRQWUDFW�� 7KH�FRVWV� WKDW� UHODWH�GLUHFWO\� WR�D� VSHFLÀF�FRQWUDFW� LQFOXGH� VLWH� ODERXU�
costs, including site supervision, costs of materials used in construction, depreciation of plant and equipment used on the 
contract, costs of design and technical assistance that is directly related to the contract etc.

,W�IXUWKHU�LQFOXGHV�VXFK�RWKHU�FRVWV�DV�DUH�VSHFLÀFDOO\�FKDUJHDEOH�WR�WKH�FXVWRPHU�XQGHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��7KHVH�
costs may be reduced by any incidental income that is not included in contract revenue, for example income from the 
sale of surplus materials.

The Company’s contracts are typically negotiated for the construction of a single asset or a group of assets which are 
closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function. In certain circumstances, the 
SHUFHQWDJH�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�PHWKRG�LV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�VHSDUDWHO\�LGHQWLÀDEOH�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�D�VLQJOH�FRQWUDFW�RU�WR�D�JURXS�
RI�FRQWUDFW�WRJHWKHU�LQ�RUGHU�WR�UHÁHFW�WKH�VXEVWDQFH�RI�D�FRQWUDFW�RU�D�JURXS�RI�FRQWUDFWV�

b. Sale of property
Revenue from the sale of investment properties is recognised by the entity when the risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the customer, all managerial responsibilities and control are completely devolved to the customer 
and where the costs and income on sale can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards are transferred when the legal title 
RU�SRVVHVVLRQ�LV�SDVVHG�WR�WKH�FXVWRPHU��7KH�JUDQWLQJ�RI�WKH�OHJDO�WLWOH�LV�DQ�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�PDWWHU�WKDW�FDQ�KDYH�VLJQLÀFDQW�
delays.

c. Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. When the Company provides 
incentives to its tenants, the cost of incentives is recognized over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as a reduction of 
rental income.

d. Service fee
5HYHQXH� IURP� VHUYLFHV� UHQGHUHG� �VXFK� DV� SURMHFW� PDQDJHPHQW�� SURMHFW� GLUHFWRUDWH�� LV� UHFRJQLVHG� LQ� SURÀW� RU� ORVV� LQ�
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by 
UHIHUHQFH�WR�VXUYH\V�RI�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG��1R�UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LI�WKHUH�DUH�VLJQLÀFDQW�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�UHJDUGLQJ�UHFRYHU\�
of the consideration due.

When the Company is acting as an agent, the commission rather than gross income is recorded as revenue.

e. Interest
,QWHUHVW�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�XVLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��7KH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�LV�
WKH�UDWH�WKDW�H[DFWO\�GLVFRXQWV�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�SD\PHQWV�DQG�UHFHLSWV�WKURXJK�WKH�H[SHFWHG�OLIH�RI�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�
DVVHW�RU�OLDELOLW\��RU��ZKHUH�DSSURSULDWH��D�VKRUWHU�SHULRG��WR�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�OLDELOLW\��7KH�HIIHFWLYH�
LQWHUHVW�UDWH�LV�HVWDEOLVKHG�RQ�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�DQG�OLDELOLW\�DQG�LV�QRW�UHYLVHG�VXEVHTXHQWO\�

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received transaction costs, and discounts 
or premiums that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly 
DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ��LVVXH�RU�GLVSRVDO�RI�D�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�OLDELOLW\�

Interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Company’s trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in the fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading 
income.

o. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�FRPSULVHV�FXUUHQW�DQG�GHIHUUHG�WD[��,QFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�H[FHSW�WR���
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�IRU�ÀQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�SXUSRVHV�DQG�WKH�DPRXQWV�XVHG�IRU�WD[DWLRQ�SXUSRVHV��
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting 
QRU�WD[DEOH�SURÀW��DQG�GLIIHUHQFHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�VXEVLGLDULHV�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�WKH\�SUREDEO\�ZLOO�QRW�UHYHUVH�
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

$�GHIHUUHG�WD[�DVVHW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RQO\�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�WD[DEOH�SURÀWV�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�DJDLQVW�
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
WKDW�LW�LV�QR�ORQJHU�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�UHODWHG�WD[�EHQHÀW�ZLOO�EH�UHDOLVHG�

'HIHUUHG�WD[�UHODWLQJ�WR�LWHPV�UHFRJQLVHG�RXWVLGH�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�RXWVLGH�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��'HIHUUHG�WD[�LWHPV�DUH�
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to 
pay the related dividend is recognised.

p.     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
$�ÀQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQW� LV�DQ\�FRQWUDFW�WKDW�JLYHV�ULVH�WR�D�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RI�RQH�SDUW\�DQG�D�ÀQDQFLDO� OLDELOLW\�RU�HTXLW\�
instrument of another party. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for 
ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�UHFRUGHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables
/RDQV�DQG�UHFHLYDEOHV�DUH�QRQ�GHULYDWLYH�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�ZLWK�À[HG�RU�GHWHUPLQDEOH�SD\PHQWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�TXRWHG�LQ�
an active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at the amount expected to be received, less, when 
material, a discount to reduce the receivables to fair value.

$IWHU�LQLWLDO�PHDVXUHPHQW��VXFK�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�VXEVHTXHQWO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�
rate method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate method. The losses arising from impairment are 
UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�LQ�ÀQDQFH�FRVWV�IRU�ORDQV�DQG�LQ�RWKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�IRU�UHFHLYDEOHV�

'HUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
$�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW� �RU��ZKHQ�DSSOLFDEOH��D�SDUW�RI�D� ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�SDUW�RI�D�FRPSDQ\�RI� VLPLODU� ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�� LV�
derecognised when:

D�����7KH�ULJKWV�WR�UHFHLYH�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�KDYH�H[SLUHG�RU
E������7KH�&RPSDQ\�UHWDLQV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYH�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�RU�KDV�DVVXPHG�DQ�REOLJDWLRQ�WR�SD\�WKH�UHFHLYHG�
��������FDVK�ÁRZV�LQ�IXOO�ZLWKRXW�PDWHULDO�GHOD\�WR�D�WKLUG�SDUW\�XQGHU�D�¶SDVV�WKURXJK·�DUUDQJHPHQW��DQG�HLWKHU��

The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or the Company has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. When the Company 
KDV�WUDQVIHUUHG�LWV�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYH�FDVK�ÁRZV�IURP�DQ�DVVHW�DQG�KDV�QHLWKHU�WUDQVIHUUHG�QRU�UHWDLQHG�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�WKH�
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement in the asset.

,PSDLUPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
7KH�&RPSDQ\�DVVHVVHV�DW�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�LV�DQ\�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�D�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�JURXS�
RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV� LPSDLUHG��$�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�D�JURXS�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�GHHPHG�WR�EH�LPSDLUHG�LI��DQG�RQO\�LI��
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition 
RI� WKH�DVVHW� �DQ� LQFXUUHG� ¶ORVV� HYHQW·��DQG� WKDW� ORVV� HYHQW� KDV�DQ� LPSDFW�RQ� WKH�HVWLPDWHG� IXWXUH�FDVK� ÁRZV�RI� WKH�
ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU� WKH�JURXS�RI� ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV� WKDW�FDQ�EH� UHOLDEO\�HVWLPDWHG�� (YLGHQFH�RI� LPSDLUPHQW�PD\� LQFOXGH�
LQGLFDWLRQV�WKDW�WKH�GHEWRUV�RU�D�FRPSDQ\�RI�GHEWRUV�LV�H[SHULHQFLQJ�VLJQLÀFDQW�ÀQDQFLDO�GLIÀFXOW\��GHIDXOW�RU�GHOLQTXHQF\�
LQ� LQWHUHVW�RU�SULQFLSDO�SD\PHQWV�� WKH�SUREDELOLW\� WKDW� WKH\�ZLOO�HQWHU�EDQNUXSWF\�RU�RWKHU�ÀQDQFLDO� UHRUJDQLVDWLRQ�DQG�
ZKHUH�REVHUYDEOH�GDWD�LQGLFDWH�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�D�PHDVXUDEOH�GHFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ÁRZV��VXFK�DV�FKDQJHV�
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LQ�DUUHDUV�RU�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQV�WKDW�FRUUHODWH�ZLWK�GHIDXOWV��$Q�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�D�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�PHDVXUHG�
at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated 
IXWXUH�FDVK�ÁRZV�GLVFRXQWHG�DW�WKH�RULJLQDO�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH��,QGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLÀFDQW�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�WHVWHG�IRU�
impairment on an individual basis. 

$OO� LPSDLUPHQW�ORVVHV�IRU� LWHPV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURÀW�DQG�ORVV��$Q�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV� LV�
reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. For 
ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��WKH�UHYHUVDO�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURÀW�DQG�ORVV��

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
)RU�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FDUULHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��VXFK�DV�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV���WKH�&RPSDQ\�ÀUVW�DVVHVVHV�LQGLYLGXDOO\�ZKHWKHU�
REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�RI�LPSDLUPHQW�H[LVWV�LQGLYLGXDOO\�IRU�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLÀFDQW��RU�FROOHFWLYHO\�IRU�
ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLÀFDQW��,I�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�QR�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�RI�LPSDLUPHQW�
H[LVWV�IRU�DQ�LQGLYLGXDOO\�DVVHVVHG�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW��ZKHWKHU�VLJQLÀFDQW�RU�QRW��LW�LQFOXGHV�WKH�DVVHW�LQ�D�FRPSDQ\�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a 
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount 
of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of estimated 
IXWXUH�FDVK� ÁRZV� �H[FOXGLQJ� IXWXUH�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW� ORVVHV� WKDW� KDYH�QRW�EHHQ� LQFXUUHG��GLVFRXQWHG�DW� WKH� ÀQDQFLDO�
asset’s original effective interest rate.
 
Financial liabilities
)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�FODVVLÀHG�DV�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�RU�ORDQV�DQG�ERUURZLQJV�

$OO� ÀQDQFLDO� OLDELOLWLHV� DUH� UHFRJQLVHG� LQLWLDOO\� DW� IDLU� YDOXH� DQG�� LQ� WKH� FDVH� RI� ORDQV� DQG� ERUURZLQJV�� QHW� RI� GLUHFWO\�
DWWULEXWDEOH� WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV��$IULODQG�3URSHUWLHV�3OF� ÀQDQFLDO� OLDELOLWLHV�DUH� WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�DQG� ORDQV�DQG�
borrowings.
  
 Subsequent measurement
�7KH�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�GHSHQGV�RQ�WKHLU�FODVVLÀFDWLRQ��
 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
7KH�&RPSDQ\·V�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�FRPSULVH�PDLQO\�RI�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV�ZKLFK�DUH�VXEVHTXHQWO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�
DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��*DLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�ZKHQ�WKH�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�
derecognised as well as though the EIR amortisation process.
)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�FODVVLÀHG�DV�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�LI�SD\PHQW�LV�GXH�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV��2WKHUZLVH��WKH\�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�DV�
non-current liabilities.

'HUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV
$�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�LV�GHUHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�XQGHU�WKH�OLDELOLW\�LV�GLVFKDUJHG�RU�FDQFHOOHG�RU�H[SLUHV��:KHQ�DQ�
H[LVWLQJ�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�LV�UHSODFHG�E\�DQRWKHU�IURP�WKH�VDPH�OHQGHU�RQ�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�GLIIHUHQW�WHUPV��RU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�DQ�
H[LVWLQJ�OLDELOLW\�DUH�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�PRGLÀHG��VXFK�DQ�H[FKDQJH�RU�PRGLÀFDWLRQ�LV�WUHDWHG�DV�D�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
���,Q�WKH�SULQFLSDO�PDUNHW�IRU�WKH�DVVHW�RU�OLDELOLW\��RU
��,Q�WKH�DEVHQFH�RI�D�SULQFLSDO�PDUNHW��LQ�WKH�PRVW�DGYDQWDJHRXV�PDUNHW�IRU�WKH�DVVHW�RU�OLDELOLW\

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a 
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

$�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�D�QRQ�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW�WDNHV�LQWR�DFFRXQW�D�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQW·V�DELOLW\�WR�JHQHUDWH�HFRQRPLF�
EHQHÀWV�E\�XVLQJ�WKH�DVVHW�LQ�LWV�KLJKHVW�DQG�EHVW�XVH�RU�E\�VHOOLQJ�LW�WR�DQRWKHU�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQW�WKDW�ZRXOG�XVH�WKH�DVVHW�
in its highest and best use.

$OO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�IRU�ZKLFK�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�PHDVXUHG�RU�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�FDWHJRULVHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�
IDLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\��GHVFULEHG�DV�IROORZV��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLÀFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�
as a whole:
��/HYHO���³�4XRWHG��XQDGMXVWHG��PDUNHW�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�IRU�LGHQWLFDO�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV
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��/HYHO���³�9DOXDWLRQ� WHFKQLTXHV� IRU�ZKLFK� WKH� ORZHVW� OHYHO� LQSXW� WKDW� LV� VLJQLÀFDQW� WR� WKH� IDLU� YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW� LV�
directly or indirectly observable
��/HYHO���³�9DOXDWLRQ� WHFKQLTXHV� IRU�ZKLFK� WKH� ORZHVW� OHYHO� LQSXW� WKDW� LV� VLJQLÀFDQW� WR� WKH� IDLU� YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW� LV�
unobservable

2IIVHWWLQJ�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�RIIVHW�DQG�WKH�QHW�DPRXQW�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�LI��
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

s.     NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued at the reporting date but 
DUH�QRW�\HW�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�������DQG�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�LQ�SUHSDULQJ�WKHVH�ÀQDQFLDO�
statements:

The Company plans to adopt the standards below on their respective effective dates.  Management is in the process of 
assessing the impact of the standards on the Company.

Standard            Content        Effective year
IFRS 9                  Financial instruments      no effective date
IFRS 10                Investment entities amendment     1-Jan-18
,$6��������������������2IIVHWWLQJ�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�²�DPHQGPHQWV
                               to IAS 32        1-Jan-14
IFRIC 21              Levies        1-Jan-14
IAS 39                 Novation of Derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting - 
                               Amendments to IAS 39            1-Jan-14
IAS 36                  Disclosure requirements for recoverable amount of 
                               impaired assets amendment           1-Jan-14
,$6���������������������'HÀQHG�EHQHÀWV�SODQV�²�(PSOR\HH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DPHQGPHQW� � ��-DQ���
Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012 cycle)      1-Jul-14
Improvements to IFRS (2011-2013 cycle)      1-Jul-14

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
,)56����DV�LVVXHG��UHÁHFWV�WKH�ÀUVW�SKDVH�RI�WKH�,$6%·V�ZRUN�RQ�WKH�UHSODFHPHQW�RI�,$6����DQG�DSSOLHV�WR�FODVVLÀFDWLRQ�DQG�
PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�GHÀQHG�LQ�,$6�����7KH�VWDQGDUG�ZDV�LQLWLDOO\�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition 
Disclosures, issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2018. In subsequent phases, the 
,$6%�LV�DGGUHVVLQJ�KHGJH�DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG�LPSDLUPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�WKH���-DQXDU\������HIIHFWLYH�GDWH�RI�,)56�
��ZDV�UHPRYHG��7KH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKH�ÀUVW�SKDVH�RI�,)56���ZLOO�QRW�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�FODVVLÀFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQWV�RI�
WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�TXDQWLI\�WKH�HIIHFW�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�RWKHU�
SKDVHV��ZKHQ�WKH�ÀQDO�VWDQGDUG�LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�SKDVHV�LV�LVVXHG�

Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 provide an exception to the 
FRQVROLGDWLRQ�UHTXLUHPHQW�IRU�HQWLWLHV�WKDW�PHHW�WKH�GHÀQLWLRQ�RI�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�HQWLW\�XQGHU� ,)56�����7KH�H[FHSWLRQ�WR�
FRQVROLGDWLRQ�UHTXLUHV�LQYHVWPHQW�HQWLWLHV�WR�DFFRXQW�IRU�VXEVLGLDULHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��,W�LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�
that this amendment would be relevant to the Company, since none of the entities in the Company would qualify to be 
an investment entity under IFRS 10.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32
These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and the criteria for non-
simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. These amendments are not expected to impact the Company.

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)
,)5,&����FODULÀHV�WKDW�DQ�HQWLW\�UHFRJQLVHV�D�OLDELOLW\�IRU�D�OHY\�ZKHQ�WKH�DFWLYLW\�WKDW�WULJJHUV�SD\PHQW��DV�LGHQWLÀHG�E\�WKH�
UHOHYDQW�OHJLVODWLRQ��RFFXUV��)RU�D�OHY\�WKDW�LV�WULJJHUHG�XSRQ�UHDFKLQJ�D�PLQLPXP�WKUHVKROG��WKH�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ�FODULÀHV�
WKDW�QR�OLDELOLW\�VKRXOG�EH�DQWLFLSDWHG�EHIRUH�WKH�VSHFLÀHG�PLQLPXP�WKUHVKROG�LV�UHDFKHG��,)5,&����LV�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�
SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\�������7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�H[SHFW�WKDW�,)5,&����ZLOO�KDYH�PDWHULDO�ÀQDQFLDO�
LPSDFW�LQ�IXWXUH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

IAS 36 Impairment of assets - Amendments to IAS 36
The amendments relate to the disclosure in respect of fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments are intended to 
clarify the IASB’s original intentions when amendments were made to IAS 36 as a result of the issuance of IFRS 13 Fair Value 
Measurement. The amendments also require additional information about the fair value measurement of impaired assets 
when the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal and the discount rates that have been used 
when the recoverable amount. The Company does not expect this amendment to have an impact.
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,$6����1RYDWLRQ�RI�'HULYDWLYHV�DQG�&RQWLQXDWLRQ�RI�+HGJH�$FFRXQWLQJ�²�$PHQGPHQWV�WR�,$6���
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as 
a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2014. The Company has not novated its derivatives during the current period. However, these amendments 
would be considered for future novations.

 
,$6����(PSOR\HH�EHQHÀWV��$PHQGPHQWV�
:LWK�'HÀQHG�%HQHÀW�3ODQV��(PSOR\HH�&RQWULEXWLRQV��$PHQGPHQWV�WR�,$6����(PSOR\HH�%HQHÀWV��WKH�,$6%�KDV�DPHQGHG�
the requirements in IAS 19 for contributions from employees or third parties that are linked to service:

��,I�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�LV�LQGHSHQGHQW�RI�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�\HDUV�RI�VHUYLFH��FRQWULEXWLRQV�PD\�EH�UHFRJQLVHG�
as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered (note: this is an allowed but not 
required method). 
��,I�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�GHSHQGV�RQ�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�\HDUV�RI�VHUYLFH��WKRVH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�PXVW�EH�DWWULEXWHG�
WR�SHULRGV�RI�VHUYLFH�XVLQJ�WKH�VDPH�DWWULEXWLRQ�PHWKRG�DV�XVHG�IRU�WKH�JURVV�EHQHÀW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�SDUDJUDSK����
of IAS 19.
 
The amendments are intended to provide relief in that entities are allowed to deduct contributions from service cost in 
the period in which the service is rendered. This was common practice prior to the 2011 amendments to IAS 19. In those 
cases the impact of retrospective application would be minimal. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. 
There is no impact of this amendment on the Company.  
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����5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW���-DQXDU\������
               
                 1 January 2012
         Local GAAP       Re-measurements          IFRS
                  Notes            N’000                  N’000       N’000 
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment     A             2,793                 (1,397)        1,396
                -----------                 ----------     ----------
                    2,793  (1,397)        1,396
                -----------  ----------     ----------
Current assets      
Called-up share capital              500,000           -    500,000
Cash and short-term deposit               60,949           -      60,949
               ------------                 ----------   ------------
                560,949                           -    560,949
               ------------                 ----------   ------------
Total assets                              563,743                 (1,397)    562,345
               ------------                 ----------   ------------
Equity    
Share capital               500,000           -    500,000
Retained earnings          A           17,524                 (1,397)      16,127
                                    -------------               -----------  -------------
Total equity               517,524                 (1,397)    516,127
             -------------               -----------  -------------
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables                46,218           -      46,218
Income tax payable          -           -                -
              ------------                ----------    -----------
Total Current Liabilities               46,218           -      46,218
              ------------               ----------- -------------
Total Equity and Liabilities             563,742                 (1,397)    562,345
              ------------               -----------   ------------
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����5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������
               
           
                          Local GAAP     Re-measurements        IFRS
          Notes            N’000          N’000   N’000 
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment            A             2,793           (2,792)           1
                -----------        ----------             ----------
                    2,793         (2,792)    
1
                -----------        ----------             ----------
Current assets    
Trade and other receivables                    778                   -       778 
Called-up share capital              500,000                   -            500,000
Cash and short-term deposit             317,240                   -            317,240
                ------------        ----------          -------------
                818,018                   -            818,018
                ------------        ----------          -------------
Total assets               820,811        (2,792)            818,019
                ------------        ----------           ------------
Equity     
Share capital               500,000                   -    
500,000
Retained earnings                 A         52,178         (2,792)              49,386
                -------------       -----------        --------------
Total equity               552,178        (2,792)            549,386
                -------------       -----------        --------------
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables              268,633                   -            268,633
Income tax payable                         -                   -           -
                ------------        ----------          -------------
Total Current Liabilities               268,633                  -            268,633
                ------------       -----------          -------------
Total Equity and Liabilities               820,811        (2,792)            818,019
                ------------       -----------         -------------
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����5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�WRWDO�SURÀW�RU�ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����'HFHPEHU�����

                   L0CAL 
                   GAAP         RE-MEASUREMENT              IFRS
       Notes             N’000                      N’000           N’000

Fees and commission                14,856              -          14,856
Rental income                   8,089              -            8,089
                -----------                    ---------      ------------
Net operating income                                                                             22,945                             -          22,945

Other operating income                     207               -               207
Administrative expenses        A              (997)    (1,395)         (2,392)
                -----------                 -----------          ----------- 
2SHUDWLQJ�SURÀW� � � � � � � ����������������� �������������������������� ���������������
    
Interest income                 12,499              -          12,499
               ------------                 -----------     -------------
3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � ��� � � � ����������������� �������������������������� ���������������
    
Income tax expense           -              -                    -
                -----------  -----------      ------------
3URÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � � � � � ����������������� � ���������� ���������������
                -----------  -----------       ------------

0DWHULDO�DGMXVWPHQWV�WR�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ÁRZV�IRU�����
7KHUH�DUH�QR�PDWHULDO�GLIIHUHQFHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ÁRZV�SUHVHQWHG�XQGHU�,)56V�DQG�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ÁRZV�
presented under previous GAAP.
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4.4 Note to the Reconciliations

A. Property, Plant and Machinery

Under the local GAAP, there was no provision for depreciation on the Company’s assets capitalised. The 
depreciation provisions have been calculated and credited to the Company’s property, plant and equipment 
as at 1 January 2012 (transition date) and 31 December 2012. The depreciation provision of N1,395,000 for 31 
December 2012 has been recognised in administrative expenses in 31 December 2012 while the provision of 
N1,397,000 for 1 January 2012 (transition date) was made to the retained earnings.

            2013                2012
          N’000              N’000
5. Contract income

� 5HFRJQLVHG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV� � � � ����������������������� ����������������������
 Deferred income       53,511                     -
                    -------------         ------------
� &RQWUDFW�SURÀW� � � � � ����������������������� ����������������������
                    =======           ======

&RQWUDFW�LQFRPH�UHSUHVHQWV�UHYHQXH�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�H[HFXWLRQ�RI�IDFHOLIWV�IRU�D�FXVWRPHU·V�RIÀFHV��7KH�LQFRPH�
is for supervision and it is earned over a period of time.

            2013                2012
          N’000              N’000
 
6. Fees and commission

 Facility management fee income     49,848             -
 Agency fee income      23,734           -
 Project directorate fee income      72,381         -
 Project management fee income     62,197                      -
 APG fee income         2,714             14,856
                     ------------           -----------
                      210,874             14,856
                      ======             =====

7. Other operating income             27                  207 
           ====               ====

Other operating income was derived from non-core business activities during the year.

            2013                2012
          N’000              N’000
8. Administrative expenses

 Staff costs                    220,577          -
 Depreciation         3,995               1,395
 Other administrative expenses (Note 8a)                 260,314                  997
                    -------------            ----------
                      484,886               2,392
                    =======             =====
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         2013            2012
                      N’000          N’000
8a. Other administrative expenses

 Advertising and publicity                     1,514                  -
 Audit fee                      5,250              525
 Bank charges           70   9
 Consultancy and professional fees                  19,587              208
 Development fund            3                  -
 Directors emoluments                  11,570              100
 Donations                     8,581                  -
 Employee car allowance                    5,200   -
 Entertainment        546   1
 General              -                154
 Information system                    3,002   -
 Insurance        277      -
 ITF levy                      2,206   -
 Merger expenses                   55,792   -
 NITDA levy                     4,290   -
 NSITF levy                     2,206   -
� 2IÀFH�H[SHQVHV� � � � � � ��������������������� � ��
 Printing and stationeries        513   -
 Repairs and maintenance                  17,065   -
 Security expenses                     3,301   -
� 7D[HV�²�2WKHUV� � � � � � �������������������� � ��
 Technical service fees                110,526   -
 Travel and transport                     2,856   -
               -------------         ---------
                   260,314              997
                 =======         =====
9.  Interest income

 Interest income on bank placements                 61,142         12,499
                     =====         =====
 
10. Income tax expense

��D�� 3URÀW�RU�ORVV
 Current income tax:
 Company income tax                  32,625   - 
 Education tax                     6,525   -
 Capital gains tax                   16,887   -
 Under provision in prior year                  22,918   -
                   -----------          ---------
 Current year income tax charge (Note 24)                78,955   -
 Deferred tax:
 Relating to origination of temporary difference (Note 24)              63,853                  -
                  ------------         ---------
� 7RWDO�LQFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�UHSRUWHG�LQ�SURÀW�RU�ORVV� ����������������������������������������������� ��
                   ======         ===== 
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                       2013           2012
                     N’000         N’000
10b. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 
  
 
� 3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � � � � ������������������ �������������
                =======      ======
 
 Tax at Nigeria statutory income tax of 30%             127,424          9,978
 Disallowable expenses               (29,705)        (9,978) 
 Impact of capital allowance                (1,241)  -
                 ------------       ----------
                    96,478  -
 Impact of Education tax                   6,525  -
 Capital gains tax                  16,887  -
 Under provision in prior year                                22,918  - 
                 ------------      -----------
                  142,808  -
                  ======      ======

11. Basic/ diluted earnings loss per share     
%DVLF�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�DPRXQW�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�QHW�SURÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�E\�WKH�
number of ordinary shares outstanding as at balance sheet date.

'LOXWHG�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�DPRXQW�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�QHW�SURÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�E\�WKH�
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the diluted year.

� 7KH�IROORZLQJ�UHÁHFWV�WKH�LQFRPH�DQG�VKDUH�GDWD�XVHG�LQ�WKH�EDVLF�ORVV�SHU�VKDUH�FRPSXWDWLRQV
    
                       2013          2012     
                     N’000         N’000

� 1HW�SURÀW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�HTXLW\�KROGHUV� � ������������������� �������������
                  ======      ======

                 Number    Number
� � � � � � � � ����������������¶���� ����������¶���

 Number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share                        1,000,000  1,000,000
              ======== ========

 Basic/ diluted earnings per share (Naira)                                                         N0.28         N0.03  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued



  AFRILAND PROPERTIES PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 45

12. Property, Plant and equipment

                                             Plant                Furniture,     
             and            Fittings and                   Motor       Computer  
                   Machinery            Equipment               Vehicles     Equipment                Total 
          N’000                     N’000   N’000              N’000               N’000 
 Cost:
 At 1 January 2012                -                      1,156           -               1,637                2,793 
 
 Additions                 -             -           -     -      - 
         ---------    ---------                    -----------           -----------           ----------- 
 At 31 December 2012               -                      1,156           -               1,637                2,793 
 Additions           2,657      3,881  18,145  797              25,480 
 Retirement                 -             -           -             (1,333)             (1,333) 
        ----------    ---------                -----------            ----------             ---------- 
 At 31 December 2013         2,657      5,037  18,145               1,101              26,940 
        ----------    ---------                -----------             ---------           ----------- 
 Accumulated depreciation:
 At 1 January 2012                -                         578                           -                  819                1,397 
 Depreciation charge for the year              -                         577           -                  818                1,395 
                                       -----------                     ---------                  ----------            ----------             ---------- 
 At 31 December 2012               -      1,155           -               1,637                2,792 
 
 Depreciation charge for the year        1,329         235    2,282  149               3,995 
 Retirement                -             -           -             (1,333)             (1,333) 
         ----------    ---------                  ----------             ---------            ---------- 
 At 31 December 2013         1,329      1,390    2,282  453               5,454 
 
         ----------    =====  =====             =====              ===== 
 
 Net book value:
 At 31 December 2013        1,328       3,647  15,863   648             21,486 
                            =====      =====                 ======             =====            ====== 
 
 At 31 December 2012                -                             1                           -                     -                      1 
             ====       ====     ====                  ===                ==== 
 
 At 1 January 2012                 -         578           -  818               1,396 
            ====       ====     ====                ====              =====
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                       2013           2012
                     N’000         N’000
13. Investment properties

                 At 1 January            -                 -
 Acquisitions arising from UBA Spin-off (Note 13a)         2,496,000  -
 Other acquisitions of properties                10,772  -
 Disposals                     (36,194)  -
 Net gain from fair value adjustments (Note 13b)              84,151                 -
               --------------        ---------
 At 31 December             2,554,729                 -
                             ========      ======

13a. This represents the net book value of the excess real estate assets of UBA transferred to Afriland Properties Plc at  
 the time of spin-off. The title documents for the properties however have not been perfected. The Directors are   
 of the opinion that the fair values of the investment properties are not less than the costs.

13b. The Company’s investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2013 by in-house professionals who are
�TXDOLÀHG�YDOXHUV�DQG�KROG�UHFRJQLVHG�UHOHYDQW�SURIHVVLRQDO�TXDOLÀFDWLRQV�DQG�KDYH�UHFHQW�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�WKH�� �
 locations and categories of the investment properties valued.

                       2013          2012       1 January 2012
                       N’000        N’000         N’000

14. Prepayments (non-current)
 
 Prepaid employee car allowance                15,600  -                -
                    =====            ===             ===

 The prepaid employee car allowance represents the unamortised portion of 5 years car allowance granted to the 
employees. The balance is expected to be written off over 4 years. 

                       2013          2012       1 January 2012
                     N’000         N’000         N’000

At 1 January             -  -  -
Addition during the year                  26,000  -                  -
                  -----------         --------           -------
                    26,000  -  -

&KDUJHG�WR�SURÀW�RU�ORVV��1RWH��D�� � � � � ������������������� � �� � �
Balance due within the year (Note 17)               (5,200)  -  -
                  -----------         --------         --------
At 31 December                   15,600  -                 -
                  ======          ====          ====
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                    2013        2012       1 January 2012
                   N’000      N’000                       N’000

15. Trade and other receivables
 
 Trade receivables             192,245              -                -
 Rent receivables               56,920              -                -
 Due from related parties (Note 25)             39,874              -                -
 Withholding tax receivable              33,898              -                -
 Staff debtors                         -          683                     -
 Sundry debtors                 8,862            95                -
              ------------     ---------                     ----------
               331,799          778                               -
               ======     =====                      =====

 Rent receivables are non-interest bearing and are typically due within 30 days. There are no impairments on the   
 receivables as at year-end based on the payment terms with the counter-parties. 

                    2013        2012       1 January 2012
                  N’000      N’000                       N’000

16. Advance to contractors              34,650              -                            -
                              ======     =====                      =====
 
 The advance to contractors represents payments made in respect of a project for one of the Company’s clients  
� WRZDUGV�\HDU�HQG�IRU�ZKLFK�QR�VLJQLÀFDQW�ZRUN�KDV�EHHQ�FDUULHG�RXW�DV�DW�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH�

                    2013        2012       1 January 2012
                  N’000      N’000                       N’000
 
17. Prepayments (current)   
 
 Health insurance                    469              -                -
 Motor vehicles insurance                   496              -                -
 Generator set maintenance     88              -                -
 Software licence fees                   244              -                -
 Employee car allowance (Note 14)               5,200              -                -
                 ---------     ---------      ----------
                   6,497              -                -
                    =====     =====                      =====

18. Called-up share capital        -   500,000                    500,000
                      === =======     ======

 This represents called-up share capital unpaid as at balance sheet date. There is no unpaid called-up share capital as at  
 31 December 2013.
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                       2013           2012       1 January 2012
                                    N’000         N’000          N’000

19. Cash and short-term deposits  
 Cash at bank                  31,382        22,004         60,949
 Short-term deposits            1,238,025      295,236                  -
            ----------------   -------------     ------------
               1,269,407     317,240         60,949
              ========    =======       ======

&DVK�DW�EDQN�HDUQV� LQWHUHVW�DW� ÁRDWLQJ� UDWHV�EDVHG�RQ�GDLO\�EDQN�GHSRVLW� UDWHV�� 6KRUW�WHUP�GHSRVLWV�DUH�PDGH� IRU� YDU\LQJ�
periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn 
interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

)RU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�ÁRZV��FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�FRPSULVH�RI�FDVK�DW�EDQN�DQG�VKRUW�WHUP�GHSRVLWV�
 
                       2012           2012       1 January 2012
                     N’000         N’000          N’000
20. Issued share capital and share premium

20a. Issued share capital
  
 Authorised and issued:

 At 1 January                500,000      500,000      500,000
 Addition during the year           -                 -                  -
                -------------     ------------    -------------
 At 31 December                500,000      500,000      500,000
                =======      ======      ======

During the year, the unpaid called-up share capital of the Company were issued to the existing shareholders of UBA on a 
pro-rata basis in exchange for the excess amount of the net book value of investment properties transferred from UBA to the 
Company.

                 2012    2012  1 January 2012
             N’000  N’000   N’000
20b. Share premium 
  
 At 1 January                    -          -           -
 Issued in the year      1,996,000          -           -
                    ----------------  --------                ----------
 At 31 December      1,996,000          -           -
                      ========  ====                 =====

Share premium represents the excess amount of the net book value of investment properties transferred from UBA to Afriland 
Properties Plc in exchange for 1 billion ordinary shares of the Company with nominal value of N0.50 per share. The amount form 
SDUW�RI�WKH�QRQ�GLVWULEXWDEOH�UHVHUYHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZKLFK�FDQ�EH�XVHG�RQO\�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�VSHFLÀHG�XQGHU�&RPSDQLHV�DQG�
Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, LFN 2004. 
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21. Retained earnings
  

Retained earnings represent the carried forward recognised income net of expenses plus current year result attribut-
able to equity holders.    

              2013    2012                   
             N’000  N’000 
 
 At 1 January          49,386                 16,127  
� 3URÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU���� � � � ��� ��������������������������������� �����
        -------------             ------------ 
 At 31 December         331,325  49,386  
        =======               ======  
  
                2013    2012  1 January 2012
              N’000                 N’000   N’000
22. Trade and other payables 
 
 Trade payables         311,247               160,651                 22,367
 Accruals (Note 25)         123,426                   1,294                   2,352
 Due to related parties (Note 25)         12,398           -                           -
 Rentals received for third parties       394,631                 68,425            -
 Service charge payable          22,854                 31,885  21,499
 Value Added Tax            57,911    6,027            -
 Withholding Tax            35,423              -            -
 Sundry payable          24,224           -            -
 Other payables            9,120       351            -
                    -------------         -------------           ------------
          991,234              268,633              46,218
                    =======         =======            ======

23. Deferred income
    
 Contracts obtained       197,577          -           -
 Service charge received in advance                            586          -                          -
 Rents received in advance            74,638           -           -
            ---------               -----------                  --------
           272,801                         -          -
          ======   ====    ====

                    1 January  
                         2013     2012                   2012
               N’000                N’000                N’000
 24. Taxation

24a. Current tax payable

 At 1 January                      -           -                         -
 Charge for the year (Note 10)          78,955         -                          - 
 Payments during the year                      -          -                         -
           ----------               ---------             ----------
 At 31 December           78,955                         -                         -
             =====               =====                =====

24b. Deferred tax liability

 At 1 January                     -           -                         -
 Charge for the year (Note 10)          63,853         -           - 
           ----------             ---------             -----------
 At 31 December               63,853           -                         -
             =====  ====              ======

 Deferred tax relates to the following:
 
 Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose          63,853          -                         -
             =====               =====                =====
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25.   Related party transactions

3DUWLHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�UHODWHG� LI�RQH�SDUW\�KDV�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWURO�WKH�RWKHU�SDUW\�RU�H[HUFLVH� LQÁXHQFH�RYHU�
WKH�RWKHU�SDUW\�LQ�PDNLQJ�ÀQDQFLDO�DQG�RSHUDWLRQDO�GHFLVLRQV��RU�RQH�SDUW\�FRQWUROV�ERWK��7KH�GHÀQLWLRQ�LQFOXGHV�NH\�
management personnel of the Company.

The key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties. The 
GHÀQLWLRQ�RI�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�LQFOXGHV�WKH�FORVH�PHPEHUV�RI�IDPLO\�RI�NH\�SHUVRQQHO�DQG�DQ\�HQWLW\�RYHU�ZKLFK�NH\�
PDQDJHPHQW� H[HUFLVH� FRQWURO�� 7KH� NH\� PDQDJHPHQW� SHUVRQQHO� KDYH� EHHQ� LGHQWLÀHG� DV� WKH� H[HFXWLYH� DQG� QRQ�
executive directors of the Company. Close members of family are those family members who may be expected to 
LQÁXHQFH��RU�EH�LQÁXHQFHG�E\�WKDW�LQGLYLGXDO�LQ�WKHLU�GHDOLQJV�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

The following table provides the summary of outstanding balances in respect of transactions that have been entered 
LQWR�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�IRU�WKH�UHOHYDQW�ÀQDQFLDO�\HDU�

                       2013           2012
                     N’000         N’000
          Due from related parties                 39,874                 -
 Due to related parties               (12,398)  -
                   ----------       ----------
                    27,476                 -
                  ======      ======
 Trading transactions 
 
 Due from related parties     
 Transnational Hotels and Tourism Services Ltd               30,256                 -
 Avon HMO Ltd                    3,423                 -
 Ten Oil Limited                    6,195  -    
                  -----------       ----------
                    39,874                 -
                  ======        =====
 Due to related parties     
 Transnational Hotels and Tourism Services Ltd                 3,817  -
 Tony Elumelu Foundation                   8,581  -
                  -----------    ------------
                    12,398  -
                  ======      ======
 
 Nature, terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

There is a common shareholder across the Companies but there is no record of any impairment of receivables relating 
to amounts owed by each party in either year. 

Technical service fee 
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�D�WHFKQLFDO�VHUYLFH�IHH�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�+HLUV�+ROGLQJ�/LPLWHG�ZKLFK�LV�EDVHG�RQ����RI�WKH�SURÀW�EHIRUH�
tax and minimum of N100 million per annum net of taxes. The amount for the year ended 31 December 2013 is N100 
million (2012: Nil). 
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           2013                2012
         N’000              N’000
 Compensation of the Directors of the Company 
      
� 6KRUW�WHUP�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHÀWV� � � � �������� � ������
 Fees paid for meetings attended      4,500                  100
 Other emoluments                                                      7,070       -
                      -----------              --------
 Total compensation paid to the Directors   21,390  100
                      ======               ====
    
 Highest paid Director        9,820  100
         =====               ====

The number of directors excluding the Chairman whose emoluments fell within the following ranges were:-
           
           2013                2012       1 January 2012
                                    Number          Number                   Number

 Up to N2,200,000               -       -       -
� 1����������²�1����������� � � � � ����������� � ������� � ������
 N10,200,001 and above              -       -       -
           -------               -------  ------
                 4       -       -
           ====               ====   ===

            2013                 2012
        N’000                N’000
26.     Operating activities
 
� 3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ��� � � � ����������������������� ������������������
 Income tax expense                           (142,808)                      - 
                    ------------         ------------
                      281,939             33,259
 Adjustment for:
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment         3,995              1,395
� 3URÀW�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV� � ���������������������� � �����
 Interest income                   (61,142)          (12,499)
 Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
 Properties                   (84,151)                       -
                    ------------         ------------
                     (28,227)            22,155
                    ------------         ------------
 Increase in trade and other receivables                        (331,021)               (778)
 Increase in deferred income                  272,801                      -
 Increase in prepayments                  (22,097)                      -
 Increase in advance to contractors                       (34,650)                      -
 Increase in trade and other payables                            722,601            222,415
 Increase in income taxation                    78,955                      -
 Increase in deferred tax liability                   63,853                      -
                                                                                 ------------        -------------
                                                                                  750,442          221,637
                                               ------------        -------------
� 1HW�FDVK�LQÁRZ�IURP�2SHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � ���������������������� ����������������

                     ======        =======
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27.     Information relating to employees

(a) The average number of persons employed full time by the Company during the year, excluding Directors were as follows:
                       2013          2012
                Numbers   Numbers 

 
� ([HFXWLYH�RIÀFH� � � � � � � ������� �����������������
� 3URMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�RIÀFH�� � � � � ������� �����������������
 Facilities management and projects        20   -
 Technical consultancy           5  -
 Business development           3  -
 Other business support         10  -
                              ------            ------
            38                 -
                              ===            ===

                           2013           2012
                                   N’000         N’000

 Salaries and wages including staff bonuses                            209,384                 -
 Contributions to pension scheme                  11,193                 -
                 ------------     ------------
                  220,577                 -
                  ======      ======

(b) Employees of the company, other than Directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly discharged in Nigeria, received   
 remuneration (excluding pension contributions) in the following ranges:
                          2013          2012
                                        Numbers   Numbers
           N                        N
� �������������²�������������� � � � � � ������� ������������������
� �������������²������������� � � � � � ������� ������������������
� ������������²������������� � � � � � ������� ������������������
� ������������²������������� � � � � � ������� ������������������
� ������������²������������� � � � � � ������� ������������������
   Above 8,000,001            4                  -
         ------             -----
            38 
                            ===             ===

28.  Litigation and claims

There is a contingent liability in respect of a legal action against the Company for amount of N22 million (2012: Nil million) 
for which no provision has been made. The claimant’s claim is that the Company failed to restore its property to its original 
state before it was handed over. The suit is at the case management conference stage and the Directors are of the opinion 
WKDW�QR�VLJQLÀFDQW�OLDELOLW\�ZLOO�DULVH�WKHUHIURP�

29.  Capital commitments

  The Company had no capital commitment as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

30. Events after the reporting period

The SEC approval letter registering the Scheme Shares in respect of the merger proposed between Afriland Properties Plc 
and Heirs Real Estate Limited was obtained on 10 March 2014.
 
Apart from the above, there were no other events after the reporting period which could have a relevant impact on the 
ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WKDW�KDG�QRW�EHHQ�DGHTXDWHO\�SURYLGHG�IRU�RU�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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31. Financial instrument’s risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to market risk (including interest rate risk and real estate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. As such, the Company’s senior management 
LV�VXSSRUWHG�E\�WKH�)LQDQFH�	�*HQHUDO�3XUSRVH�&RPPLWWHH��)	*3&��WKDW�DGYLVHV�RQ�ÀQDQFLDO�ULVNV�DQG�WKH�DSSURSULDWH�
ÀQDQFLDO� ULVN� JRYHUQDQFH� IUDPHZRUN� IRU� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� 7KH� )	*3&� SURYLGHV� DVVXUDQFH� WR� WKH� &RPSDQ\·V� VHQLRU�
PDQDJHPHQW� WKDW� WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ÀQDQFLDO� ULVN�WDNLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�DUH�JRYHUQHG�E\�DSSURSULDWH�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�
DQG�WKDW�ÀQDQFLDO�ULVNV�DUH�LGHQWLÀHG��PHDVXUHG�DQG�PDQDJHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�&RPSDQ\�SROLFLHV�IRU�ULVN�

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Market risk 
0DUNHW� ULVN� LV� WKH� ULVN� WKDW� WKH� IDLU� YDOXHV�DQG��RU�FDVK� ÁRZV�RI� ÀQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�ZLOO� ÁXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�
LQ�PDUNHW�SULFHV� WKXV� UHVXOWLQJ� LQ� ORVV�RI�HDUQLQJV�DQG�RU�FDSLWDO� WR� WKH�&RPSDQ\�� 7KH�ÀQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�KHOG�E\� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�WKDW�DUH�DIIHFWHG�E\�PDUNHW�ULVN�DUH�SULQFLSDOO\�WKH�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQW�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�

Interest rate risk
,QWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�IXWXUH�FDVK�ÁRZV�RI�D�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�ÁXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�
interest rates. The day-to-day management of interest rate risk is done by the Finance and Investment department; this is 
reviewed by the Board’s Finance & General Purpose Committee (F&GPC) on a quarterly basis. 

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s cash equivalent 
ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�LQGHSHQGHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�EHFDXVH�WKH�LQVWUXPHQWV�KDYH�
EHHQ�SULFHG�ZLWK�À[HG�UDWHV�WKDW�UH�SULFH�LQIUHTXHQWO\�

The analysis below describes reasonably possible movements in interest rates with all other variables held constant, showing 
WKH�LPSDFW�RQ�SURÀW�EHIRUH�WD[��

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 
2013

Carrying amount    < 3 months     Impact of +400bp      Impact of -400bp

Short term deposits                 1,238,025               1,238,025                    4,638             (4,638)

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 
2012

Carrying amount    < 3 months     Impact of +400bp      Impact of -400bp

Short term deposits           295,236               295,236                   535               (535)

Real estate risk
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�LGHQWLÀHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�UHDO�HVWDWH�SRUWIROLR�

- The cost of the development schemes may increase if there are delays in the planning process. The Company uses 
DGYLVHUV�ZKR�DUH�H[SHUWV�LQ�WKH�VSHFLÀF�SODQQLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�VFKHPH·V�ORFDWLRQ�LQ�RUGHU�WR�UHGXFH�WKH�ULVNV�WKDW�
may arise in the planning process.

�� $�PDMRU� WHQDQW�PD\� EHFRPH� LQVROYHQW� FDXVLQJ� D� VLJQLÀFDQW� ORVV� RI� UHQWDO� LQFRPH� DQG� D� UHGXFWLRQ� LQ� WKH� YDOXH� RI�
WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�SURSHUW\� �VHH�DOVR�FUHGLW� ULVN�EHORZ��� 7R� UHGXFH�WKLV� ULVN�� WKH�&RPSDQ\� UHYLHZV� WKH�ÀQDQFLDO� VWDWXV�RI�DOO�
prospective tenants and decides on the appropriate level of security required via rental deposits or guarantees.

- The exposure of the fair values of the portfolio to market and occupier fundamentals.

Credit risk
&UHGLW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�FRXQWHUSDUW\�ZLOO�QRW�PHHW�LWV�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�D�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�RU�FXVWRPHU�FRQWUDFW��OHDG-
LQJ�WR�D�ÀQDQFLDO�ORVV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�H[SRVHG�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�IURP�LWV�UHQWDO�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�LWV�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�
GLUHFWRUDWH�DFWLYLWLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�GHSRVLWV�ZLWK�EDQNV�DQG�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV��&UHGLW�ULVN�LV�PDQDJHG�E\�UHTXLULQJ�WHQDQWV�
to pay rentals in advance. The credit quality of the tenant is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard at 
the time of entering into a lease agreement.

Outstanding tenants’ receivables are regularly monitored. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is 
WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�HDFK�FODVV�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�DVVHW��&UHGLW�WHUPV�DUH�VHW�ZLWK�FOLHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�SDVW�H[SHULHQFHV��SD\PHQW�
history and reputations of the customers.
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Tenant receivables
Tenants are assessed according to Company criteria prior to entering into lease arrangements. Rentals are collected in 
advance from rental units to limit exposures.

&UHGLW�ULVN�UHODWHG�WR�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�FDVK�GHSRVLW
&UHGLW� ULVN� IURP� EDODQFHV� ZLWK� EDQNV� DQG� ÀQDQFLDO� LQVWLWXWLRQV� LV� PDQDJHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� &RPSDQ\·V� SROLF\��
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each 
counterparties. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be 
updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance & General Purpose Committee. The limits are set 
WR�PLQLPLVH�WKH�FRQFHQWUDWLRQ�RI�ULVNV�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�PLWLJDWH�ÀQDQFLDO�ORVV�WKURXJK�SRWHQWLDO�FRXQWHUSDUW\�IDLOXUH�

Impairment analysis and ageing analysis

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2013 Carrying amount

Between 1 and 3 months Between 3 and 6 months

Fully performing

Financial assets

Short term deposits 1,238,025 1,238,025  - 1,238,025

Trade receivables 192,245 192,245 - 192,245

Rent receivables 56,920 3,970 52,950 56,920

Due from related parties 39,874 39,874 - 39,874

Sundry debtors 8,862 8,862 - 8,862

Advance to contractors 34,650 34,650 - 34,650

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2012 Carrying amount

Between 1 and 3 months Between 3 and 6 months

Fully performing

Financial assets 

Short term deposits 295,236 295,236 - 295,236

Staff debtors 683 683 - 683

Sundry debtors 95 95 - 95

Liquidity Risk
/LTXLGLW\�5LVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�EH�XQDEOH�WR�HIÀFLHQWO\�PHHW�ERWK�H[SHFWHG�DQG�XQH[SHFWHG�FXUUHQW�DQG�IXWXUH�FDVK�
ÁRZ�DV�WKH\�IDOO�GXH��7KH�&RPSDQ\·V�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�EDODQFH�EHWZHHQ�FRQWLQXLW\�RI�IXQGLQJ�DQG�ÁH[LELOLW\�WKURXJK�WKH�XVH�
of bank deposits and possibly loans in the future.

7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VXPPDUL]HV�WKH�PDWXULW\�SURÀOH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ÀQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�EDVHG�RQ�FRQWUDFWXDO�XQGLVFRXQWHG�SD\PHQWV�

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2013 Carrying amount On demand Between 2 months and 
1 year

Between 1 and 5 years

Financial liabilities 

Due to related parties 12,398 12,398 - -

Trade payables 311,247 311,247 - -

Rentals received for 
third parties

394,631 394,631 - -

Service charge 
payable

22,854 - 22,854 -

Accruals and other 
payables

250,104 - 250,104 -

Past due but not impaired

Past due but not impaired
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In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2012 Carrying amount On demand Between 2 months and 
1 year

Between 1 and 5 
years

Financial liabilities  

Trade payables 160,651 160,651 - -

Rentals received for third 
parties

68,425 68,425 - -

Service charge payable 31,885 - 31,885 -

Accruals and other payables 7,672 - 7,672 -

In thousands of Naira

As at 1 January 2012 Carrying amount On demand Between 2 months and 
1 year

Between 1 and 5 
years

Financial liabilities  

Trade payables 22,367 22,367 - -

Rentals received for third 
parties

21,499 - 21,499 -

Service charge payable 2,325 - 2,325 -

32.  Fair values 

6HW�RXW�EHORZ�LV�D�FRPSDULVRQ�E\�FODVV�RI�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�DQG�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�
DUH�FDUULHG�LQ�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2013 Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets 

Trade and other receivables 331,799 331,799

Advance to contractors 34,650 34,650

Cash and short term deposits 1,269,407 1,269,407

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 991,234 991,234

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2012 Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets 

Trade and other receivables 778 778

Cash and short term deposits 317,240 317,240

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 268,633 268,633
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In thousands of Naira

As at 1 January 2012 Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets 

Cash and short term deposits 60,949 60,949

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 46,218 46,218

33.  Fair value measurement 

� )DLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\�IRU�ÀQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU���������

In thousands of Naira

As at 31 December 2013 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at 
fair value

Investment properties                 2,554,729  - - 2,554,729

There was no transfer between the Levels during the year as the investment properties were acquired during the year.

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:
Open market valuation method was used by internal professionals; the following factors were considered:
��$�ZLOOLQJ�EX\HU�
��$�UHDVRQDEOH�SHULRG�ZLWKLQ�ZKLFK�WR�QHJRWLDWH�WKH�VDOH�WDNLQJ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\�DQG�WKH�VWDWH�RI�
the market;
��1R�DFFRXQW�LV�WR�EH�WDNHQ�RI�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�ELG�E\�D�VSHFLDO�SXUFKDVHU��DQG
��7KH�SURSHUWLHV�VKDOO�EH�IUHHO\�H[SRVHG�WR�WKH�PDUNHW

34. Capital management
7KHUH�LV�D�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�QRW�KDYH�DGHTXDWH�FDSLWDO�LQ�UHODWLRQ�LWV�ULVN�SURÀOH�DQG�RU�WR�DEVRUE�ORVVHV�ZKHQ�WKH\�
arise. The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
FRQFHUQ�LQ�RUGHU�WR�SURYLGH�UHWXUQV�WR�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�EHQHÀWV�WR�RWKHU�VWDNHKROGHUV�DQG�WR�PDLQWDLQ�DQ�RSWLPDO�FDSLWDO�
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

7KH�SROLFLHV� IRU�PDQDJLQJ�FDSLWDO�DUH� WR� LQFUHDVH� VKDUHKROGHUV·� YDOXH�E\�PD[LPL]LQJ�SURÀWV�DQG�FDVK�� 7KH�SROLF\� LV� WR�
set budgets and forecasts into the short and medium term that the Company ensures are achievable. The process for 
PDQDJLQJ�FDSLWDO�DUH�UHYLHZV�RI�WKH�ÀQDQFLDO�GDWD�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�WUDFNLQJ�WKH�WDUJHWV�VHWV�DQG�WR�UHIRUHFDVW�
DV�QHFHVVDU\�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�PRVW�XS�WR�GDWH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�ZKLOH�PDLQWDLQLQJ�D�VXVWDLQDEOH�JHQHUDWLRQ�RI�IUHH�FDVK�ÁRZ�LQ�
operations to fund steady growth.

7KH�&RPSDQ\·V�RSHUDWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZHUH�IXQGHG�WKURXJK�SURSULHWDU\�IXQGV�²�WKHUH�ZHUH�QR�ERUURZLQJV�DV�DW�\HDU�

ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). 
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35. Segment information
 

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. The primary format, business segments, is 
based on the Company’s management and internal reporting structure.

Business segments:
In thousands of Naira

Facilities management Project 
development

Business 
Development

Others Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Revenue: 

Derived from 
external customers

236,903 14,856 72,381 - 536,493 8,089 63,856 12,706 909,633 35,651

Inter-segment - - - - - - - - - -

Total revenue 236,903 14,856 72,381 - 536,493 8,089 63,856 12,706 909,633 35,651

Expenses: 

Depreciation and 
amortization

1,079 377 317 - 2,357 824 242 194 3,995 1,395

Other operating 
expenses

82,393 - 17,329 - 325,258 208 55,911 789 480,891 997

Total expenses 83,472 377 17,646 - 327,615 1,032 56,153 983 484,886 2,392

3URÀW�EHIRUH�
taxation

153,431 14,479 54,735 - 208,878 7,057 7,703 11,723 424,747 33,259

Assets and liabilities:

Total tangible assets 592,807 132,973 358,945 - 2,941,678 71,980 340,738 613,066 4,234,168 818,019

Intangible assets - - - - - - - - -- -

Total assets 592,807 132,973 358,945 - 2,941,678 71,980 340,738 613,066 4,234,168 818,019

Total liabilities 284,586 31,885 22,220 - 874,185 68,425 225,852 168,323 1,406,843 268,633

Net assets 308,221 101,088 336,725 - 2,067,493 3,555 114,886 444,743 2,827,325 549,386
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                       2013             2012
                                                                                                                                 N’000                        N’000

Net operating income                595,445                                        22,945

Cost of services - Local               (260,314)                          (997)
                 ------------                            ------------
                   335,131                               21,948
 
Other operating income          27                                    207
Interest income                   61,142                               12,499
3URÀW�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV� � � � ������������������� � ������������������������
Net gain from fair value adjustments on
 Investment properties                   84,151                         -
                 ------------                            ------------
Value added                 649,319                               34,654
                  ======                             ======

Applied as follows:
                     %                                        %
To employees:
   - as salaries and labour related expenses              220,577           34              -         -
   
To Government:
   - as company taxes                  78,955          12              -         -

Retained for the company’s future:
   - for assets replacement (Depreciation)                  3,995             1                 1,395         4
   - deferred taxation                  63,853           10             -         -
�����SURÀW�IRU�WKH�\HDU� � � � � � ������������������ ����������������������������������� ��������
                 ------------          -----         ---------------      -----
                   649,319          100               34,654      100

                  ======          ===           =======      ===

The value added represents the wealth created through the use of the Company’s assets by its own and its employees’ efforts. 

This statement shows the allocation of wealth amongst employees, government and that retained for future creation of wealth.

 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
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                              IFRS                                      LOCAL GAAP
                                       31 December                       1 January           31 December
                 2013   2012  2012                           2010 
         N’000                N’000               N’000                 N’000
6WDWHPHQW�RI�ÀQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ
Assets and liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment     21,486         1                 1,396  2,793 
Investment properties                2,554,729                         -        -         - 
Prepayment (non-current)      15,600          -        -         - 
Net current assets/ (liabilities)   299,363             449,385             514,731               (2,793) 
Deferred tax liability    (63,853)          -        -         - 
               --------------                          ------------         ------------         ------------  
                  2,827,325             549,386             516,127         - 
    
                 ========                            ======            ======             ====== 
Shareholders’ fund    
Issued share capital                   500,000            500,000            500,000          -    
Share premium                 1,996,000                         -         -         - 
Retained earnings    331,325               49,386               16,127         -  
             ---------------          ------------          ------------             ---------- 
                  2,827,325             549,386              516,127          - 
                ========             ======             ======                =====  

  
                                                                                                    IFRS                      LOCAL GAAP
Net operating income                595,445                               22,945               13,698                        - 
                ------------                          ------------           -----------            ---------- 

3URÀW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � � ���������������������� � ��������������������� ���������������������� �������������������������
Taxation                 (142,808)           -         -         - 
                ------------          ------------         ------------            ---------- 
3URÀW�DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ� � � ����������������������� � �������������������� ����������������������� � ���������
                   ======                             ======             ======               ===== 

Basic/ Diluted Earnings per share (Naira)               N0.28                N0.03                        N0.02         - 

                  ======              ======              ======               ===== 

� �

�

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the First Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Afriland Properties Plc (the “Company”) 
will hold on Friday, June 13, 2014 at the Banquet Hall, Lagoon Restaurant, Ozumba Mbadiwe Street, Victoria Island, 
Lagos at 10.00 am to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 together   
 with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon;

2. To declare dividend;

3. To elect Directors;

��� 7R�DXWKRUL]H�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�WR�À[�WKH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�$XGLWRUV�

5. To elect members of the Audit Committee

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

��� 7R�&RQVLGHU�DQG�LI�WKRXJKW�ÀW��SDVV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�DV�VSHFLDO�UHVROXWLRQV�

a) That the content of Article 11 being the maximum number of Directors be and is hereby deleted;

b) That the content of Article 12 being the retirement of Directors by rotation shall be substituted as follows:

“That the Company may from time to time in a General Meeting increase or reduce the number of Direc-
tors, and upon any resolution for an increase may appoint the additional Director or Directors necessary 
to carry the same into effect, and may also determine in what rotation such increased or reduced number 
DUH�WR�UHWLUH�IURP�RIÀFH��$Q\�'LUHFWRU�VR�DSSRLQWHG�KHUHDIWHU�WR�WKH�RIÀFH�RI�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU�&KLHI�([HF-
XWLYH�2IÀFHU�RU�DQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�VKDOO�QRW�ZKLOH�WKH�DJUHHPHQW�UHODWLQJ�WR�VXFK�DSSRLQWPHQW�UHPDLQV�
in force be subject to retirement by rotation but shall (subject to the same provisions of any such agreement 
as aforesaid) be subject to the same provisions as to resignation and removal as the other directors of the 
Company”.

c) That the following Articles on “Proceedings of Directors” be and are hereby inserted in the Articles of 
Association as Articles of the Company and the subsequent Articles renumbered accordingly:

“The Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meet-
LQJV�DV�WKH\�WKLQN�ÀWµ��

“The quorum necessary for the transaction of business of the Directors shall be two-thirds of the total num-
ber of Directors”.

“Each Director shall have one vote at meetings of Directors. Questions and resolutions at meetings shall be 
decided or passed by a majority of votes. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the Board shall 
have a second or casting vote”.

“A Director is deemed to be present at a meeting of Directors if he participates by telephone or other elec-
tronic means and all Directors participating in the meeting are able to hear each other” 

´$�UHVROXWLRQ�LQ�ZULWLQJ�VLJQHG�RU�DIÀ[HG�E\�DOO�GLUHFWRUV�IRU�WKH�WLPH�EHLQJ�HQWLWOHG�WR�UHFHLYH�QRWLFH�RI�D�
meeting of the Directors shall be as valid and effectual as if it has been passed at a meeting of the Directors 
duly convened and held and may consist of one single document executed by all the Directors or several 
copies of the document in like form executed in counterpart by each Director”
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d) That the content of Article 13 being the quorum at directors’ meeting be and is hereby deleted and the 
subsequent Articles renumbered accordingly”.

NOTES

1. PROXY
A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in 
his/her stead. For the appointment to be valid, a completed and duly stamped proxy form must be de-
SRVLWHG�DW�WKH�RIÀFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�5HJLVWUDUV��$IULFD�3UXGHQWLDO�5HJLVWUDUV�3OF��1R�����%�,NRURGX�5RDG��
3DOPJURYH��/DJRV�QRW� ODWHU� WKDQ����KRXUV�EHIRUH�WKH�WLPH�À[HG�IRU� WKH�PHHWLQJ��$�SUR[\�QHHG�QRW�EH�D�
member of the Company.

2. CLOSURE OF REGISTER
The Register of Members and Transfer Books will be closed from Tuesday, May 27, 2014 to Friday, May 30, 
2014 both days inclusive. 

3. DIVIDEND WARRANTS
If the dividend recommended by Directors is approved, dividend warrants will be posted on Wednesday, 
June 18, 2014 to all shareholders whose names appear in the Company’s Register of Members at the 
close of business on Monday, May 26, 2014.

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
In Accordance With Section 359(5) of The Companies And Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, LFN, 2004, any 
member may nominate a shareholder for election as a member of the Audit Committee by giving notice 
in writing of such nomination to the Company Secretary at least 21 days before the AGM.

Dated this 15th day of May 2014

By Order of the Board

OBONG IDIONG
FRC/2013/NBA/00000004696
Company Secretary
Afriland Properties Plc
223 Etim Inyang Crescent
Victoria Island, Lagos 
Nigeria
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